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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 16th Annual General Meeting of Adani Enterprises Limited will be held on 
Friday, 26th September, 2008 at 10.00 a.m. at Bhaikaka Bhavan, Law Garden, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad – 
380 006 to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2008 and Profit and Loss 
Account for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Pravin P. Shah,  who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Jay H. Shah, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

5. To appoint M/s. Dharmesh Parikh and Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad, as Auditors of the 
Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration (including fees for Certification) and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the purpose of audit as may be approved by the Audit 
Committee / Board of Directors of the Company. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution :

“RESOLVED  THAT  in accordance with  the provisions  of  Sections 198, 269, 309, Schedule XIII and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (including any statutory modification or  
re-enactment  thereof  for  the time  being in force), the Company hereby accords its approval to the
re-appointment of Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman of  the Company for a period of five years 
w.e.f. 01/12/2008 on the terms and conditions including terms of remuneration as set out in the explanatory 
statement attached hereto and forming part of this notice with a liberty to the  Board of Directors to alter  and  
vary  the  terms  and conditions of the said appointment so as the total remuneration payable to him shall 
not exceed  the  limits specified in Schedule XIII to  the  Companies Act,1956 including any statutory 
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force and as agreed by and between the Board of 
Directors and Shri Gautam S. Adani.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment or modification by the Central   
Government to Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors be and are hereby 
authorized to vary and alter the terms of appointment including salary, commission, perquisites,  
allowances etc. payable to Shri Gautam S. Adani within  such  prescribed limit or ceiling and as agreed by 
and between the Company and Shri Gautam S. Adani without any further reference to the Company in   
General Meeting.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to take such steps as 
may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.” 

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED  THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 198, 309, Schedule XIII and other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 1956 and in partial modification of the resolution passed at the 

thAnnual General Meeting held on 12  August, 2005 regarding payment of remuneration to Shri Rajesh S. 
Adani, Managing Director of the Company, the Company hereby accords its approval to the revision in 

stremuneration of Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director with effect from 1  October, 2008 for the 
th

remaining period of his term of office i.e. upto 10  June, 2010 on the terms and conditions of remuneration 
as set out in the explanatory statement attached hereto and forming part of this notice.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory amendment or modification by the Central   
Government to Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors be and are hereby 
authorized to vary and alter the terms of appointment including salary, commission, perquisites,  
allowances etc. payable to Shri Rajesh S. Adani within such prescribed limit or ceiling and as agreed by and 
between the Company and Shri Rajesh S. Adani without any further reference to the Company in General  
Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to take such steps as 
may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.” 

Regd. Office : 
"Adani House ", For and on behalf of the Board
Near Mithakhali Six Roads,
Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.  

thDated : 28  May, 2008.  
Gautam S. Adani
Chairman
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT  A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER.

2. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. As per clause 49 of the listing agreement(s), informations regarding re-appointment of directors
(Item Nos. 3, 4 & 6) and explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173 (2) of the Companies Act, 
1956 in respect of special businesses (Item Nos. 6 & 7) are annexed hereto.

4. The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
th th

20  September, 2008 to 26  September, 2008 (both days inclusive) to determine the entitlement of 
the shareholders to receive dividend for the year 2007-08.

5. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company 
at least 10 days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.  

6. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statement will be kept open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of Company on all working days between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. 
prior to date of Annual General Meeting.

7. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the meeting. 

8. Members holding the shares in physical mode are requested to notify immediately the change of their 
address and bank particulars to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. In case 
shares held in dematerialized form, the information regarding change of address and bank particulars 
should be given to their respective Depository Participant.  

9. In terms of Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956, nomination facility is available to individual 
shareholders holding shares in the physical form. The shareholders who are desirous of availing this 
facility, may kindly write to Company's share transfer agent M/s. Pinnacle Share Registry Pvt. Ltd., 
Near Asoka Mills Ltd., Naroda Road, Ahmedabad – 380 025, for nomination form by quoting their folio 
number.

10. The balance lying in the unpaid dividend account of the Company in respect of dividend for the 
financial year 2000-01 will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central 
Government by November, 2008. Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants 
pertaining to the said year may approach the share transfer agent of the Company for obtaining 

stpayments thereof by 31  October, 2008.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
ITEM NO. 6

Re-Appointment  of Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman

th
The members at the Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27  September, 2003
re-appointed Shri Gautam S.Adani as Executive Chairman for a period of 5 years with effect from

st1 December, 2003 on the terms and conditions as approved by them. The term of his present appointment 
 th thwill expire on 30  November, 2008. The Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 28 May, 2008 

th  recommended and the Board at its meeting  held  on 28 May, 2008  have re-appointed him as  Executive 
st 

Chairman for a further period of five years with effect from 1 December, 2008 on the following terms and 
conditions, subject to the approval of  the shareholders in General Meeting.

SHRI  GAUTAM  S. ADANI :  EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

PERIOD OF APPOINTMENT : 5  YEARS  WITH  EFFECT  FROM  1ST DECEMBER, 2008

SALARY : Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lacs Only) per month in the scale of Rs. 10,00,000-55,000-
15,00,000/- per month.

COMMISSION

Upto 2% of the Company's Net Profit for each financial year as calculated in accordance with Section 349 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 subject to the over all ceiling laid down in Sections 198 and 309 of  the Companies 
Act, 1956.

PERQUISITES

CATEGORY - A

(a) Medical benefit

Reimbursement of the medical expenses incurred for self and family as per the policy of the Company.

(b) Leave Travel Concession 

For self and family once in a year including one foreign trip in accordance with the  rules of the  Company.

(d) Club fees 

Annual fees of club subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life membership 
fees.

(e) Personal Accident Insurance 

Personal Accident Insurance of an amount the annual premium of  which shall not exceed Rs. 10,000/-.
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CATEGORY – B

Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund will not be included in the computation of the 
ceiling on perquisites to the extent they are, either singly or put together not taxable under the
Income-tax Act,1961. Gratuity will be paid as per applicable laws and rules of the Company. 

CATEGORY -C

The Company shall provide a car with driver for official and personal use.  Telephone at residence will be 
provided, the cost of which will be borne by the Company.  

Notwithstanding  anything  contained above, where in any Financial Year during the currency of the tenure  
of the  Executive Chairman, the  Company  has  no profits or its profits are inadequate, the  Company  will  
pay remuneration as specified above but not exceeding the limits specified under Section II of Part II of 
Schedule XIII to the Companies  Act,1956.  

The Executive Chairman shall not be liable to retire by rotation and shall not be paid any sitting fees  for  
attending  any meetings of Board or Committees thereof.

Shri  Gautam S. Adani has been associated with the Company  since incorporation and has over 25 years 
of varied experience in manufacturing and trading. He had joined the family business of trading in textiles in 
the early eighties while completing his education. Ever since there has been no looking back for the 46 year 
old visionary. His tremendous foresight, the dynamic and enterprising unparalleled expertise in 
international trade, solution oriented approaches, innovation and endurance in an increasingly competitive 
and rapidly expanding trading market has seen the Adani group metamorphose itself from a trading house 
to an infrastructure builder and basic utility provider. Under his able leadership and guidance the Company 
has achieved the turnover worth Rs. 11,625 crores for the year 2007-08 from Rs. 2873 crores in the year 
2002-03 and profitability of Rs. 312 crores for the year 2007-08 from Rs. 88 crores in the year 2002-03.
The Board of Directors felt that it is in the interest of the Company to continue to avail services of 
Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman.

The Board recommends this resolution for your approval. 

Shri Gautam S. Adani is deemed to be interested in the said resolution as  it relates to his  re-appointment. 
Shri  Vasant S. Adani and Shri Rajesh S. Adani  being relatives are also interested  in  the said resolution.  

None of the other Directors of the Company is in any way concerned or interested in the above  resolution.

This alongwith the relevant resolution may be treated as an Abstract pursuant of Section 302 of the 
Companies Act,1956.

 ITEM NO. 7

The terms of appointment of Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director of the Company as approved by the 
thmembers at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 12  August, 2005, inter alia, provide for 

increase in remuneration payable to him.
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In view of increased duties and responsibilities due to business complexities and looking to the progress 
made by the Company under his leadership and guidance, the Board of Directors of the Company on 
recommendation of the remuneration committee at its meeting held on 28  May, 2008 revised the 
remuneration payable to Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director of the Company with effect from

st th1  October, 2008 for the remaining period of his term of office i.e. upto 10  June, 2010, The remuneration 
th

committee at its meeting held on 28  May, 2008 recommended to the Board for revision in remuneration 
mentioned as under :

SHRI  RAJESH S. ADANI : MANAGING DIRECTOR

SALARY : Rs. 14,00,000/- (Rupees Fourteen Lacs Only) per month in the scale of Rs. 14,00,000-75,000-
st20,00,000/- per month with effect from 1  October, 2008 for the remaining period of his term of office i.e. 

thupto 10  June, 2010.

COMMISSION

Upto 2% of the Company's Net Profit for each financial year as calculated in accordance with Section 349 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 subject to the over all ceiling laid down in Sections 198 and 309 of  the Companies 
Act, 1956.

PERQUISITES

CATEGORY - A

(a) Medical benefit

Reimbursement of the medical expenses incurred for self and family as per the policy of the Company.

(b) Leave Travel Concession 

For self and family once in a year including one foreign trip in accordance with the rules of the Company.

(d) Club fees 

Annual fees of club subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life membership 
fees.

(e) Personal Accident Insurance 

Personal Accident Insurance of an amount the annual premium of  which shall not exceed Rs. 10,000/-.

CATEGORY – B

Contribution  to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund will  not be included in the computation of the 
ceiling on perquisites  to the  extent they are, either singly or put together not  taxable under  the Income-tax 
Act,1961. Gratuity will be paid as per applicable laws and rules of the Company. 

th
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CATEGORY -C

The Company shall provide a car with driver for official and personal use.  Telephone at residence will be 
provided the cost of which will be borne by the Company.  

Notwithstanding  anything  contained above, where in any Financial Year during the currency of the tenure  
of the Managing Director the  Company  has  no profits or its profits are inadequate, the  Company  will  pay  
remuneration as specified above but not exceeding the limits specified under Section II of Part II of 
Schedule XIII to the Companies  Act,1956.  

Other terms and conditions of appointment of Shri Rajesh S. Adani as Managing Director of the Company 
will remain unchanged. 

The Board recommends this resolution for your approval. 

Shri Rajesh S. Adani is deemed to be interested in the said resolution as it relates to his remuneration.
Shri Gautam S. Adani and Shri Vasant S. Adani being relatives are also interested  in  the said resolution.  

None of the other Directors of the Company is in any way concerned or interested in the above  resolution.

This alongwith the relevant resolution may be treated as an Abstract pursuant of Section 302 of the 
Companies Act,1956.

Regd. Office : For and On behalf of the Board

"Adani House ",
Near Mithakhali Six Roads,
Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad - 380 009

th
Dated : 28  May, 2008. Chairman

Gautam S. Adani



  Name           Shri Gautam S. Adani         Dr. Pravin P. Shah             Shri Jay H. Shah
 

th th th  Date of  Birth     24  June, 1962 – 46 years     11  November, 1944 – 64 Years     19  January, 1958 – 50 Years
  

nd th th  Appointed on        2  March, 1993 28  January, 1994 20  June, 1995
  
  Qualifications S.Y.B. Com.     B.Com, FCA, Grad. ICWA, Ph.D. B. Com, LL. B.

(Cost  Accounting)

  Expertise in specific   A man of tremendous 
foresight, the dynamic and 
enterprising Shri Gautam S 
Adani has over 25 years of 
var ied exper ience in  
manufacturing and trading. 
He joined the family 
business of trading in 
textiles in the early eighties 
whi le  complet ing h is  
education. Ever since there 
has been no looking back 
for the 46 year old visionary. 
His unparalleled expertise 
in international trade, 
s o l u t i o n  o r i e n t e d  
approaches, innovation 
and endurance in an 
increasingly competitive 
and rapidly expanding 
trading market has seen 
the Adani Group metamor-
phose itself from a trading 
house to an infrastructure 
builder and basic utility 
provider.

Aged 64 years, Dr. Pravin P. 
Shah is a Practising Chartered 
A c c o u n t a n t  a n d  t h e
proprietor of the renowned firm 
M/s.  Pravin P. Shah & 
Associates, a firm of Chartered 
Accountants. He has over 38 
years of experiences in areas 
of f inancial consultancy, 
taxation, valuation, property 
matters, accounting, auditing, 
corporate laws and FEMA. He 
has also authored books on 
C o s t i n g , M a n a g e m e n t  
Strategies and Taxation. His 
latest published book is “Billion 
Dollar Companies”. He has 
also contributed technical 
papers on taxation, valuation, 
f i n a n c i a l  m a n a g e m e n t ,  
Company Law, Acquisitions & 
Mergers, Stamp duty and 
Others at various conferences 
and published in professional 
journals, business magazines 
and financial newspapers in 
India and U.S.A. 

The 50 year old law graduate, 
Shri Jay H Shah, has been 
with the company since its 
inception. Acknowledged by 
one and all in the company to 
possess the acumen of an 
artful trader, his connections 
and global sourcing skills have 
earned him a reputation in the 
c h e m i c a l s  a n d  p e t r o -
chemicals business.

Directorships held 
in other Public 
Companies
(Other than Adani 
Enterprises Ltd.)

· Mundra Port and Special 
Economic Zone Ltd.

· Adani Power Ltd.
· Adani Energy Ltd.
· Adani Wilmar Ltd.
· Adani Logistics Ltd.
· Adani Welspun 

Exploration Ltd.
· Dholera Port And Special 

Economic Zone Ltd.
· Adani Power 

Maharashtra Ltd.
· Adani Power Rajasthan 

Ltd.
· Adani Power Dahej Ltd.

· Bhansali Engineering 
Polymers Ltd.  

· Bombay Rayon Fashions 
Ltd. 

· Claris Lifesciences Ltd.  
· JM Financial Ltd. 
· Jai Corp Ltd.

-

Details of Directors Seeking Re-appointment.

Business of Success Annual Report // 2007 - 2008
10



  Name           Shri Gautam S. Adani         Dr. Pravin P. Shah             Shri Jay H. Shah

Memberships/
Chairmanships of 
Committees across 
Public Companies

Audit Committee:
·
· Adani Logistics Ltd.
· Adani Energy Ltd. 

Adani Wilmar Ltd.
Audit Committee:
·
· Bombay Rayon Fashions 

Ltd.
· Bhansali Engineering 

Polymers Ltd.
· Claris Lifesciences Ltd.
· JM Financial Ltd.

Remuneration Committee

· Adani Enterprises Ltd.
· Bombay Rayon Fashions 

Ltd.
· Claris Lifesciences Ltd.
· JM Financial Ltd.

Adani Enterprises Ltd.
Audit Committee:
Adani Enterprises Ltd.

Shareholder's/Investors 
Grievances Committee:
Adani Enterprises Ltd.

Remuneration  committees
Adani Enterprises Ltd.

No. of Shares held 
in the Company 

NIL 6000 NIL

Details of Directors Seeking Reappointment.

Business of SuccessAnnual Report // 2007 - 2008
11



DIRECTORS REPORT  

th
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 16  Annual Report of the Company along with the audited 
statement of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2008.  

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

st
The Financial Results of your Company for the year ended 31  March, 2008, are as follows: 

PERFORMANCE OF YOUR COMPANY
Ø Standalone: 

Your Company posted another record performance in fiscal 2008 and posted strong growth in all 
segments.   
On a standalone basis, your Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 11,624.61 Crores as compared to 
Rs. 10155.65 Crores in the previous year registering a growth of 14%. The net profit after tax stood at 
Rs. 312.07 crores compared to Rs. 150.69 crores in the previous year registering a growth of 107%.

stThe EPS of the Company as at 31  March, 2008 was Rs. 12.66/-. 

Standalone
 

Consolidated
st

Year Ended March 31

 

2008
 

2007
 

 2008
 

2007

Sales and operating earnings
 

11595.44
 

10151.66
 

  19609.71
 

16949.06

Other income 29.17
 

3.99
 

39.00  4.16

Gross Profit before Depreciation, 
Interest and Tax 

518.14  348.89  755.04  473.90

Finance charges 154.38  143.68  277.01  228.58

Depreciation 11.25  6.90  44.77  16.33

Profit before Tax 352.51.  198.31  433.26  228.99

Tax  
40.44

 
47.62

 57.26  51.64

Net Profit

 

312.07

 

150.69

 

369.75

 

173.28
 

   

Surplus brought forward from 
previous year

371.61 323.85 403.79

Balance available for 
appropriations

 

683.68

 

474.54

 
843.89

 
577.07

Appropriations:

    Dividend on Equity Shares:

    
- Final 

 

14.79

 

-

 

14.79

 

-

- Interim

 

-

 

11.34

 

-

 

11.34

Tax on Dividend

 

2.51

 

1.59

 

2.51

 

1.59

Transfer to General Reserve

 

50.00

 

30.00

 

70.00

 

30.00

Transfer to Debenture 
Redemption Reserve

 

10.00

 

60.00

 
 

10.00

 

60.00

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 606.38 371.61 746.59 474.14

Total 683.68 474.54 843.89 577.07

(Rs. In Crores)

Share of Minority Interest and
Share of Loss from Associate

- - 6.25 4.07

474.14
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Ø Consolidated :

The consolidated turnover is Rs.19648.71 crores as compared to Rs. 16953.22 crores in the previous 
year registering a growth of 16%. The consolidated net profit after tax and minority interest is
Rs. 369.75 crores as compared to Rs. 173.28 crores in the previous year.  

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared as per Accounting Standards
AS 21 and AS 23 prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Clause 32 of the Listing 
Agreement have also been included and form part of this Annual Report. The consolidated networth of the 
Company as at March 31, 2008 is Rs. 2117.71 crores as compared to Rs. 1146.95 crores in the previous 
year registering a growth of 85%.

A detailed discussion of the performance of operations of your Company is given under “Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report”, which forms part of this report. 

DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARES

CONSISTENT DIVIDEND PAYMENT TRACK RECORD

3
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Equity Share Capital Reserves & Surplus

For the year under review, the Board of Directors 
of your Company are pleased to recommend 
dividend of Re.0.60 per share i.e. 60% on 
24,64,86,975 fully paid up Equity Shares of the 
Company. The total Dividend Payout will be
Rs. 17.30 crores which includes Corporate 
Dividend Tax of Rs.2.51 Crores. If this is 
approved at the Annual General Meeting, the 
dividend warrants will be dispatched to the 
shareholders holding shares on the book 
closure date  within 30 days from the AGM. The 
shareholders holding shares on book closure 
date including shareholders holding shares to 
be issued upon conversion of FCCBs will be 
entitled for full dividend for the year 2007-08. 

The dividend will be tax-free in the hands of 
the shareholders. 
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SEGMENT REPORTING 

Your Company is a “Five Star Export House” with operations covering a wide range of commodity groups 
like Agro, Energy, Metals & Minerals and others with shipping forming backbone to its businesses. In view 
of the integrated nature of business in its entirety, there are no separate segments within the Company as 
defined by Accounting Standard 17 (Segmental Reporting) issued by the ICAI.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and the rules made there under.  

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

stDuring the year ended 31  March, 2008, the Equity Shares of your Company were delisted from
th

The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange, Ahmedabad with effect from 20  December, 2007. The resolution for the 
th

delisting of shares was approved by the shareholders at the 15  Annual General Meeting of the Company 
thheld on 29  September, 2007. 

The equity shares of your Company are continue to be listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and 
The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., (NSE) and are actively traded. The listing fees for the year
2008-09 have been paid before the due dates. The Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) issued 
by your Company during January, 2007 are listed on the Singapore Exchange Ltd. Singapore.

Your Company's shares are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted to the 
shares of your Company is INE423A01024. The details of shareholding pattern, distribution of 

st
shareholding and share prices of the Company as on 31  March, 2008 are separately mentioned in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 

During the year, M/s. Adani Infrastructure Services Pvt. Ltd., (AISPL) a promoter group Company acquired 
1,99,72,691 Equity Shares of your Company constituting 8.10% of the paid up capital from the public 
shareholders at a price of Rs. 350 per share  under public offer as per the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeover), Regulations, 1997.  Promoters holding in the Company, after the aforesaid 
acquisition under public offer, increased to 75% of the paid up share capital.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A good corporate governance system envisages application of best corporate practices, adherence to 
ethical standards for effective management and establishment of highest standards of disclosure, 
transparency, performance and enhancement of wealth of all stakeholders. 

For your Company, corporate governance is a continuous process. It seeks to maximize disclosures, 
transparency and performance and thereby endeavours to enhance the wealth of the shareholders and 
other stakeholders. Your Company has not only complied with all statutory and regulatory requirements as 
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges but also voluntarily 
complied with several non-mandatory matters, which are included in the report on Corporate Governance 
annexed to this report. 
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Your Company is continuously adopting and following such practices, conventions and codes as would 
provide its financial stakeholders a high level of assurance on the quality of corporate governance. This is 
evident from the fact that your Company was short-listed for the second and final round for the purpose of 
Corporate Governance Award - 2007 from amongst the Companies of all over India for the purpose of 
Corporate Governance Award for the fourth consecutive year by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI). 

Separate reports on Management Discussion and Analysis and on Corporate Governance along with a 
certificate from Auditors are attached hereto and form part of this report as per Annexures III and IV 
respectively.  

FORMATION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES 

Details of various committees constituted by the Board of Directors as per the provisions of Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement and Companies Act, 1956 are given in the Corporate Governance Report annexed and 
form part of this report.

DIRECTORS

ØResignation of Shri Chinubhai R. Shah 
th

Shri Chinubhai R. Shah who was appointed on the Board of Directors of your Company on 20  October, 
rd2000 resigned as Director with effect from 23  April, 2008. The Board places on record its  appreciation for 

the distinguished services rendered by Shri Chinubhai R. Shah, during his tenure as Director of the 
Company and Chairman of the Audit and Shareholder's / Investor's Grievances Committees and as a 
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company.

ØRetirement by Rotation

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and Articles of Association of the 
Company, Dr. Pravin P. Shah and Shri Jay H. Shah, directors of the Company retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.  The brief profiles 
of these Directors have been given in the annexure to the explanatory Statement of the notice convening 
Annual General Meeting.

ØRe-appointment of Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman
th

The tenure of Shri Gautam S. Adani, Executive Chairman of the Company will expire on 30  November, 
2008. The Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on

th28  May, 2008 recommended and approved the re-appointment of and payment of remuneration to
Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman of the Company for a further period of five years i.e. upto

th
30  November, 2013, subject to the approval of shareholders. Terms and conditions for his re-appointment 
are contained in the Explanatory Statement forming part of the notice of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

ØRevision in remuneration of Managing Director 

On review of the duties and responsibilities assigned to Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director and 
looking to the time devoted and increase in the nature of activities of the Company, the Board of Directors of 
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your Company on recommendation of remuneration committee have decided to revise the remuneration 
payable to him as detailed in the Explanatory Statement forming part of the Notice of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.  

Appropriate resolutions for : 

1. Re-appointments of Dr. Pravin P. Shah and Shri Jay H. Shah, Directors retiring by rotation. 

2. Re-appointment of and payment of remuneration to Shri Gautam S. Adani as Executive Chairman 

of the Company 

3. Revision in remuneration of Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director of the Company.

are proposed in the notice convening Annual General Meeting for your approval.  
 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to sub-section (2AA) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors of your 
Company hereby confirm : - 

1. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed ;

2. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

st
state of affairs of the Company as at  31  March, 2008 and also of the profit for the year ended on 
that date;

3. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

4. that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

To drive its business globally, your Company has 29 subsidiary companies across the globe as per details 
given here in below:

vReal Estate :

1. Adani Infrastructure and Developers Pvt. Ltd.
2. Adani Estates Pvt. Ltd.
3. Swayam Realtors and Traders Ltd.
4. Columbia Chrome (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
5. Shantigram Estate Management Pvt. Ltd. 
6. Adani Land Developers Pvt. Ltd.
7. Adani Developers Pvt. Ltd. 
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8. Adani Landscapes Pvt. Ltd. 
th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 27  September, 2007)

9. Adani Mundra SEZ Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
st(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 1  February, 2008)

10. Miraj Impex Pvt. Ltd. 
th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 15  October, 2007)

vAgro :

11. Adani Agri Logistics Ltd. 
12. Adani Agri Fresh Ltd. 

vEnergy:

Ø Power : 

13. Adani Power Ltd. 
14. Adani Power Maharashtra Ltd.  

rd(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 23  July, 2007)
15. Adani Power Rajasthan Ltd.

th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 10  March, 2008)
16. Adani Power Dahej Ltd.

th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 15  December, 2007)

Ø Coal :

17. Adani Global Pte. Ltd., Singapore. 
(Subsidiary of Adani Global Ltd., Mauritius)

18. PT Adani Global, Indonesia
(Subsidiary of Adani Global Pte. Ltd., Singapore)

19. Parsa Kente Collieries Ltd.
th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 16  October, 2007)

20. Adani Mining Pvt. Ltd.
st(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 31  August, 2007)

Ø Oil and Gas: 

21. Adani Energy Ltd.
st(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 21  June, 2007)

22. Adani Welspun Exploration Ltd.
th(Became subsidiary w.e.f. 4  August, 2007)

v Metals, Minerals and Scrap:

23. Vyom Tradelinks Pvt. Ltd. 
24. Adani Global FZE, Dubai

(Subsidiary of Adani Global Ltd., Mauritius)
25. Adani Virginia Inc, USA

(Subsidiary of Adani Global FZE, Dubai)
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vShip Owning and Chartering

26. Adani Shipping Pte. Ltd, Singapore.
(Subsidiary of Adani Global Ltd., Mauritius)

27. Libra Shipping Pte Ltd, Singapore. 
(Subsidiary of Adani Global Ltd., Mauritius)

vOthers - Holding Companies 

28. Adani Habitats Pvt. Ltd.
29. Adani Global Ltd., Mauritius.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has for the financial year 2007-08, exempted the Company from the 
applicability of the provisions contained in sub-section (1) of Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, 
relating to the documents to be attached in respect of the subsidiary Companies, with the financial 
statements of the Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has informed whilst granting exemption to 
provide the summarized financial details of each subsidiary. The details required are provided herewith. 

Shareholders interested in obtaining the statement of Company's interest in the subsidiaries or stand-alone 
financial statements of the subsidiaries may obtain it by writing to the  Asst. Company Secretary. 

The annual accounts of subsidiary Companies are available for inspection by any investor at the registered 
office of the Company. 

JOINT VENTURES  

ØJoint Venture with RVUNL, Rajasthan.

Your Company has entered into a strategic tie up through a Joint Venture (JV) with Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut 
Utpadan Nigam Ltd. (RVUNL), an undertaking of Government of Rajasthan and engaged in the business of 
generation and distribution of electricity in the State of Rajasthan. 

Pursuant to Joint Venture Agreement, a new JV Company, namely “Parsa Kente Collieries Ltd.,” has been 
incorporated in the month of October 2007. Your Company holds 74% stake of Parsa Kente Collieries Ltd.  
It will develop and operate coal mines; coal blocks in Sargaja District (Chhatisgarh) for the exclusive use of 
RVUNL and also for benefication, transportation and delivery of coal to RVUNL for its generation stations.  

ØJoint Venture with Chemoil Group, Singapore. 

Your Company has also tied up a joint venture with "Chemoil Group" of Singapore and formed a 50:50 JV 
thCompany namely, Chemoil Adani Pvt. Ltd. on 27  May, 2008 in India for undertaking businesses relating to 

bunkering i.e. ship fuelling at the various ports of India.  
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Adani Group carries on social welfare activities through a trust namely, “Adani Foundation”. 

The broad objectives for which this trust is formed are public charitable purposes for the benefit of the public 
without distinction of caste or community, section or religion, class or creed. These include relief to the poor 
and distressed, Education, Promotion of social and economic welfare of or the upliftment of the public and 
Advancement of any other object of general public utility.

The activities of the trust can be divided in four Major Areas i.e. Medical assistance, Educational 
assistance, Charitable assistance and General assistance.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT 

M/s. Dharmesh Parikh and Co., Statutory Auditors of your Company, retires at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. Your Company has received letter from them to the effect that 
their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section 224(1-B) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and also that they are not otherwise disqualified within the meaning of sub section
(3) of Section 226 of the Companies  Act, 1956 for such re-appointment.  

The Audit Committee of the Company recommended re-appointment of M/s. Dharmesh Parikh and Co., 
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

The notes to the accounts referred to in the auditors' report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call 
for any further comments. 

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND EXPENDITURE.  

The information relating to foreign exchange earnings and expenditure are annexed hereto as Annexure-I 
and forms part of this report. 

Since your Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to conservation 
of energy and technology absorption stipulated as per Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read 
with the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, are not 
applicable. 

“GROUP” FOR INTER-SE TRANSFER OF SHARES

As required under Clause 3(e) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
1997, persons constituting “Group” (within the meaning as defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade 
Practices Act, 1969) for the purpose of availing exemption from applicability of the provisions of 
Regulations 10 to 12 of the aforesaid SEBI Regulations are given in Annexure II attached herewith and the 
said Annexure forms part of this Annual Report.
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PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors sincerely acknowledges the exemplary dedication of all its employees, which 
contributed to the improved performance. The industrial relations between employer and employees 
continued to be cordial.  

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies 
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, details of the employees are set out in the annexure 
to the Directors' Report.  

However, having regard to the provisions of 219(1)(b)(iv) of the said Act, the Annual Report excluding the 
aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the Company and others entitled thereto.
Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may write to the Asst. Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this valuable opportunity to thank all Investors, Vendors, Traders, Customers, Banks, 
Financial Institutions, all Government and Non-Government agencies and the society at large for their 
continued support. Your Directors also acknowledge the commitment and contribution of all employees to 
the growth of your Company.  
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gautam S. Adani
Chairman

Place : Ahmedabad
th

Dated : 28  May, 2008.

Annexure to Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2008
ANNEXURE  I

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(I)

(II)

Current year

 (Rs. in crores)

Previous year 

Foreign exchange earned
(Including export of goods on FOB basis )
Foreign exchange used   

3545.82
3827.36 

5857.98
4709.49
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ANNEXURE - II   FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT

The following is the list of persons (in alphabetical order) constituting “Group” (within the meaning as 
defined in the Monopolistic and Restrictive Trade Practices Act, 1969) for the purpose of availing exemption 
from applicability of the provisions of Regulations 10 to 12 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 (“the said Regulations”), as provided 
in Clause 3(e) of the said Regulations : 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 
Sr.
No. 

Particulars 
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 

1 Adani Agri Logistics Ltd. 40 Crown International 79 Rajesh S. Adani

2 Accurate Finstock Pvt. Ltd. 41 Columbia Chrome (India) 
Pvt. Ltd. 

80 Rajesh S. Adani Family Trust

3 Adani Agri Fresh Ltd. 

 

42 

 

Darshini Patel

 

81

 

Rajeshbhai S. Adani HUF

4 Adani Agro Pvt. Ltd. 

 

43 

 

Ezy Global

 

82

 

Rajasthan SEZ Pvt. Ltd. 

5 Adani Developers Pvt. Ltd. 

 

44 

 

Gautam S. Adani

 

83

 

Radiant Trade and Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.

 

6 Adani Energy (U.P.) Ltd.

 

45

 

Gautam S. Adani Family Trust

 

84

 

Rakesh R. Shah 

 

7 Adani Energy Ltd. 

 

46

 

Gautambhai S. Adani HUF

 

85

 

Ranjan V. Adani 

 

8 
Adani Estates Pvt. Ltd. 

 

47 

 

Gujarat Adani Infrastructure 
Pvt. Ltd.

 

86

  

Riddhi V. Adani 

 

9 Adani Exports

 

48 

 

Gujarat Adani Aviation Pvt. Ltd. 

 

87

  

Rahi R. Adani 

 

10 Adani Global FZE

 

49 

 

I Call India Ltd. 

 

88

  

Rushabh Shah

 

11 Adani Global Ltd. 

 

50

 

I Gate India Pvt. Ltd.

 

89

 

S. B. Adani Family Trust

12 Adani Global Pte. Ltd.

 

51

 

Intercontinental (India)

 

90

 

Shantikrupa Estates Pvt. Ltd. 

13 Adani Habitats Pvt. Ltd.

 

52

 

Inland Conware Pvt. Ltd.

 

91

 

Shantikrupa Services Pvt. Ltd.

14 Adani Infrastructure and
Developers Pvt. Ltd. 

 

53

 

Inland Conware (Ludhiana) 
Pvt. Ltd.

 

92

  

Shantigram Estate Management 
Pvt. Ltd. 

 

15 Adani Infrastructure Services 
Pvt. Ltd. 

 

54

 

Jeet G. Adani

 

93

  

Shilin R. Adani

 

16 Adani Investments

 

55

 

Karan G. Adani

 

94

 

Surekha B. Shah

 

17 Adani Land Developers Pvt. 
Ltd. 

 
56

 

Kunal D. Shah

 

95

 

Shirali Shah

 

18 Adani Landscapes Pvt. Ltd.

 

57

 

Kavita Shah

 

96

 

Sagar R. Adani 

 

19 Adani Logistics Ltd. 

 

58

 

Krupa Adani

 

97

  

Shantaben Adani 

 

20 Adani Mundra SEZ 
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

 
59

 

Mahasukh S. Adani  

 

98

 

Sharmishta Sanghavi 

 

21 Adani Mining Pvt. Ltd. 

 
60

 
Mahasukh S. Adani Family 
Trust

 99

 
Suvarna M. Adani

 

22 Adani Petronet (Dahej) Port 
Pvt. Ltd. 

 61
 

Mahasukh S. Adani HUF
 

100
 

Swayam Realtors and Traders 
Ltd. 

 

23 Adani Port Infrastructure Pvt. 
Ltd. 

62
 

Mansi K. Shah
 

101
 

Trident Trade and Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.  

24 Adani Power Dahej Ltd.  63 Manali Mehta 102 Ventura Trade and Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.  

25 Adani Power Ltd.  64 Mundra Port & Special 
Economic Zone Ltd.  

103 Vasant S. Adani 

26 Adani Power Maharashtra 
Ltd.

 

65
 

Mundra SEZ Textile & 
Apparel Pvt. Ltd. 

 

104
 

Vasant S. Adani Family Trust

27 Adani Power Rajasthan Ltd.
  

66
 

MPSEZ Utilities Pvt. Ltd. 
 

105
 

Vasantbhai S. Adani HUF

28 Adani Properties Pvt. Ltd.

 
67

 
m to M Traders Pvt. Ltd.

 
106

 
Vinod S. Adani 

 29 Adani Shipyard Pvt. Ltd. 

 

68

 

Miraj Impex Pvt. Ltd. 

 

107

 

Vinod S. Adani Family Trust

30 Adani Retail Ltd. 

 

69

  

Namrata P. Adani

 

108

 

Vinodbhai S. Adani HUF

31 Adani Textile Industries

 

70

  

Nrupal Shah

 

109

 

Vanshi R. Adani 

 
32 Adani Welspun Exploration 

Ltd. 

 

71

 

Netvantage International Ltd.

 

110

 

Vinod N. Sanghavi

 
 

33 Adani Wilmar Ltd. 

 

72

  

Param P. Adani 

   

34 Advance Exports 

 

73

 

Pranav V. Adani 

   

35 Advance Investment

 

74

  

Priti G. Adani 

   

36 Anish Mehta 75 Priti R. Shah 

37 B2B India Pvt. Ltd. 76 Pushpa V. Adani 

38 Bhavik B. Shah 77 Priti R. Shah

39 Bhaumik Patel
78 Pride Trade and Investment 

Pvt. Ltd. 



ANNEXURE - III
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of Adani Enterprises Limited (“the Company”) is pleased to present the analysis of 
performance of the Company for the year 2007-2008 and the outlook for the future, which is based on 
assessment of the current business environment. It may vary due to future economic and other 
developments, both in India and abroad. 

     Economy and Business Environment – an overview

     GDP Growth over the Years

The Indian economy in the last few years has been on an upswing and marches ahead as one of the 
fastest growing economies in the world. Such a robust growth has been spurred by the Industrial and 
Service Sectors which have contributed more than  80% of the total GDP. In turn, tax collections have 
been buoyant, improving state of the public finances.

A GDP growth of around 9% in consecutive years and robust domestic consumption portend 
encouraging signs of continued growth. During the year, the capital market overall did well despite some 
volatility. The rupee proved to be sturdy and reliable currency with a surge in the inflow of foreign direct 
investments and portfolio investments, as also weakness exhibited by the US Dollar. Foreign exchange 
reserves burgeoned. Amidst the backdrop of global volatility and incipient signs of a global slowdown, 
India's economy shows resilience, characterized by healthy macro economic conditions. This along with 
other positive factors such as favorable demographic profile and rising income levels holds out promise 
for furthering the consumption led growth. Indeed, India looks poised to maintain its growth trajectory as 
a country. The remarkable progress of the industrial sector registering a growth of more than 10% 
provides immense opportunities for the Company. 

The management's views on the Company's performance and outlook are discussed below: 

      Business: Energy

The Company has a significant presence in the Energy sector commodities of coal, power, petroleum 
products trading and city gas distribution. In order to be present across the value chain in these business 
areas, the Company initiated its foray into power generation, coal mining, oil & gas exploration as well as 
expanding the city gas distribution footprint to several other cities in India. 
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A. Power Generation
The Company intends to capitalize on the emerging opportunities in the Indian power generation 
sector, which are being driven by the current and expected demand and supply imbalance in India. 
Notwithstanding various policy initiatives within India to diversify fuel mix, with the limited reserve 
potentiality of petroleum and natural gas, eco-conservation, restrictions on hydroelectric power 
projects and the geopolitical perception of nuclear power, we believe that it is likely that coal will 
continue to be the primary generator of energy in India.  

The Company  is targeting a total power generation capacity of 10,000 MW to be operational in a 

phased manner through its subsidiaries, Adani Power Ltd., Adani Power Maharashtra Ltd, Adani 

Power Rajasthan Ltd., Adani Power Dahej Pvt. Ltd. in the states of Gujarat, Maharashtra and 

Rajasthan.  

The Company has currently six thermal power projects under various stages of development or 
planning. Brief details of various power projects being undertaken by the Company are as under:

v 4620 MW Thermal Coal based power project - Mundra SEZ area through a subsidiary 
Company, Adani Power Ltd. (APL)

Mundra power projects: The Mundra power projects are located along the coast and will utilize 
imported coal as primary fuel for its operations. APL has entered into long-term coal supply 
arrangements for importing coal with the Company for Mundra power projects. PT Adani Global, 
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into agreements with holders of long-term exploitation 
licenses to exclusively mine coal in Bunyu Island, Indonesia. For Mundra I, II and III power projects, 
APL proposes to procure the coal from PT Adani Global which will source such coal from mines in 
Indonesia. The coal for Mundra IV power project will also be procured internationally and supplied by 
the Company to the power project sites.  As a result of our long-term coal supply agreements and 
relationship with the supplier, we believe that the Company will benefit from competitive pricing for 
procuring the coal for its various power projects. 

Phase I and II of the Mundra power project will have four sub-critical generation units of
330 MW each, with combined capacity of 1,320 MW. The Boiler, Turbine and Generator (“BTG”) 
package for phase I and II of Mundra Power Project has been awarded to Sichuan Machinery and 
Equipment Import and Export Company Limited and Kowa Company Limited, respectively. We 
currently expect that the first 330 MW unit of Mundra I and II power project will commence operations 
from January 2009, and that the power project will be fully commissioned by October 2009.

Phase III & IV of the Mundra Power Project : Phase III & IV of the Mundra Power project have 
two and three super-critical generation units of 660 MW each with combined capacity of 1320 MW 
and 1980 MW respectively. The Engineering, Procurement and Construction (“EPC”) contract for 
both the phases have been awarded to SEPCO-III Electric Power Construction Corporation and 
Shandong Tiejun Electric Power Engineering Company Limited. The operations of both these 
phase are expected to be commissioned from January and August 2011 respectively and 
respective power projects are expected to be fully commissioned by June 2011 and April 2012 
respectively.  
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v1980 MW Thermal Coal based power project - Tiroda, Maharashtra through a 
subsidiary Company, Adani Power Maharashtra Ltd., (APML). 

The Company has been allocated coal blocks at Lohara West and Lohara Extension for 
generating up to 1,980 MW of power at our Tiroda power project which have estimated coal 
reserves of approximately 170 million metric tons (“MMT”) and an average gross 
calorific value (“GCV”) ranging between 4,290 and 5,590 Kcal/kg, according to the 
geological report prepared by the Central Mine Planning and Design Institute Limited.
The Company has also applied to the Standing Linkage Committee, Ministry of Coal, for 
allocating additional long term coal linkage for Tiroda power project.

Tiroda power project will have three super-critical generation units of 660 MW each, with combined 
capacity of 1,980 MW. The Boiler, Turbine and Generator (“BTG”) package for Tiroda power project 
has been awarded to Sichuan Machinery and Equipment Import and Export Company Limited.
We currently expect that the first 660 MW unit of Tiroda power project will commence operations 
from July 2011, and that the power project is expected to be fully commissioned by April 2012.

v1980 MW Thermal Coal based power project - Dahej, Gujarat through a subsidiary 
Company, Adani Power Dahej Ltd. (APDL) 

The Dahej power project is located close to the Dahej fair-weather lighterage port and will 
utilize imported coal as primary fuel for its operations. The Company has also 
entered into long-term coal supply arrangements for importing coal  for its Dahej 
power project. It is expected to have three super-critical generation units of 660 MW 
each, with combined capacity of 1,980 MW. We estimate that construction of the project will 
commence in September 2008 and the first 660 MW unit of project is expected to 
commence operations from November 2011, and that the project is expected to be fully 
commissioned by June 2012.

v 1320 MW Thermal Coal based power project -  Kawai, Rajasthan through a subsidiary 
Company, Adani Power Rajasthan Ltd. (APRL) 

Kawai power project: Under a memorandum of understanding, the State Government of 
Rajasthan has agreed to use its best efforts to facilitate the provision of coal for such power project 
from the Government of India or other sources. The said power project is expected to have two 
super-critical generation units of 660 MW  each, with combined capacity of 1,320 MW. It is estimated 
that construction of the power project will commence in July 2008. The first 660 MW unit of power 
project is expected to commence operations from October 2011, and that the power project is 
expected to be fully commissioned by January 2012.

With the setting up of the aforesaid mega power projects, the Company will be emerged as a large 
integrated player in the power sector having presence in the entire value chain viz. From coal 
power trading -----------  to coal mining and power generation.>
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B. Coal Mining

(i). Indian Coal Mining

Coal is the most important and abundant fossil fuel in India. The country's industrial heritage was 
built upon indigenous coal. Geological Survey of India has estimated the coal reserves of India at 
247.85 billion tonnes of which 92 billion tonnes are proven. Hard coal deposits spread over 27 major 
coal fields are mainly confined to eastern and south central parts of India. Based on estimates, the 
consumption of coal is projected to rise by nearly 40% over the next five years and almost to double 
by 2020. Indigenous coal mining shall accordingly form an important segment of the overall power 
sector thrust area for the coming years.
  
With this backdrop, Indian coal is supposed to be a major fuel source to domestic energy market for 
the next century and beyond. As informed last year, the Company has been selected by Rajasthan 
Rajya Vidyut Utpadan Nigam Ltd. (RVUNL) for Identifying the techno-economically viable most 
suitable coal blocks, liaisoning with Govt. of India and making all efforts for allotment of the identified 
coal block(s) to RVUNL and carrying out coal mining operations for delivery of coal to its power 
plants.  Pursuant to this, Government of India has allocated Parsa East and Kente Basan coal 
Blocks located in Chhattisgarh (Coal Blocks) to RVUNL in June 2007. Further, in compliance of the 
condition of the tender, a Joint Venture Company namely, Parsa Kente Collieries Limited has been 
incorporated in October 2007 wherein the Company holds 74% shareholding and RUVNL holds 
26% shareholding which will enter into a Coal Mining and delivery Agreement with RVUNL to 
undertake the development and operation of the Coal Blocks and delivering the coal from the Coal 
Blocks to RVUNL Thermal Power Stations.

The coal mining operations in the above said Coal Blocks are expected to start from April 2010.

Further, the Company has been also been selected as successful bidder for carrying out survey, 
exploration and mining activities in coal block allotted to Maharashtra State Mining Corporation 
Limited at Agarzari, Near Chandrapur District in the State of Maharashtra. A Joint Venture special 
purpose vehicle will be formed to undertake above activities. 

The Company is also actively looking at other opportunities in mining operations in India & Abroad.
  
The Company will continue to look for more opportunities across India for other coal mining ventures 
with State Electricity Boards.

(ii). Indonesian Coal Mining
Coal is a global industry, with coal mined commercially in over 50 countries and consumed in over 70 
countries. The world currently uses 5.4 billion tons of coal in variety of sectors – power generation, 
iron & steel production, cement manufacturing and as a fuel. Its production has seen a substantial 
increase over the last 20 years, with maximum contribution by Asia. 

Indonesia being the seventh largest coal-producing country in the world has approximately 5.3 
billion MT of recoverable coal reserves. Sumatra contains roughly two-third of Indonesia's total coal 
reserves, with the balance located in Kalimantan, West Java and Sulawesi.



The Company through its subsidiary Company, PT Adani Global, Indonesia has identified 140 
million tons coal mine reserves in the Indonesia. The identified reserves are located in the island 
of Bunyu in E.Kalimantan, near the border of Malaysia to the north. The sites are located in the 
central and northern part of the island. The preliminary geological investigation has been 
completed and the mining would be started followed by the subsequent development. Once the 
mines start functioning, the Company will have presence in the entire value chain of coal 
business, as the Company is already a leading coal trader. Apart from this, the Company is 
exploring more options in Australia, South Africa and other countries for coal mining.

C. Power & Coal Trading

There exists a large gap between supply and demand of power in large parts of the country. Inherent 
diversity in demand of various States in the country also results in periods of seasonal surplus in one 
State or Region coinciding with periods of deficit in another. To capitalize on this growing opportune 
sector, the Company had started power trading business in November, 2003 and since then the 
Company has already traded more than 7000  Million Units of power till March, 2008 to the entire 
satisfaction of surplus / buying utilities of power. The Company has evolved as a leading private 
sector power trader in India and targets to increase its trading volume to 5000 Million Units per 
annum over next five years. 
  
The Company is holding highest category 'F' inter-state license for trading in power by the Central 
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) in 2003, wherein the Company can undertake trading of 
more than 1,000 Million Units of electricity during the year, covering the jurisdiction of the entire 
country, except Jammu and Kashmir, for next 25 years. Further, during the year under review, the 
Company has obtained membership of first power exchange, Indian Energy Exchange Ltd. (IEX) to 
widen the scope of services being offered to customers. The Company plans to include the trading of 
surplus power from power projects being set up by the subsidiary Companies in future. The 
Company also plans to explore power trading avenues with the neighboring countries like Bhutan, 
Nepal & Bangladesh and focusing on long term contracts to drive the volume growth.  

Coal is one of the primary sources of energy, accounting for about 55% of the total energy 
consumption in the country. About 75% of the coal in India is consumed in the power sector. Indian 
coal has high ash content and low calorific value and India has also faced a shortage of coal supply 
for many years, which is expected to continue as energy needs increase with growth of the Indian 
economy. Most of this shortage will need to be met through imports.

During the year under review, the Company has maintained its position as the largest importer of 
coal in India. The Company has also entered into long-term strategic arrangements for supply of 
imported coal, which has lesser Ash content and better calorific value for higher productivity with 
largest mining Company of Indonesia. The Company has also developed relationships with large 
miners of Indonesia and China.

D. City Gas Distribution

Gas distribution for Industries, commercial establishments & residences in the cities has ushered in 
a new era of cost-efficient and environment friendly fuel. CNG program introduced in the country due 
to environmental concerns has registered an immense success due to the fact that use of CNG 
holds large price advantage in automobiles compared with use of conventional fuels like MS and 
diesel. The Company aims at improving the environment by setting up a comprehensive network of 
CNG stations.  
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The Company has forayed into the business of City Gas Distribution Business through its subsidiary 
Adani Energy Ltd., (AEL) with an objective of providing safe, convenient, reliable and environment 
friendly fuel (Piped Natural Gas - PNG and Compressed Natural Gas – CNG) to the industrial, 
commercial, household and transport sectors.  AEL has already set up a Gas Distribution Network, 
established infrastructure for more than 130 KM of steel pipeline network, 450 KM of PE network, 45 
CNG stations for two of Gujarat's most industrialized and commercial Districts – Ahmedabad and 
Vadodara. AEL is targeting to serve more then 250 industrial units, 10,000 households, 100 
commercial units and 40,000 vehicles in these cities through its infrastructure network.  AEL is also 
implementing City Gas Distribution projects to repeat the similar success stories in Noida, Lucknow 
& Khurja in UP, Faridabad in Haryana and Udaipur, Jaipur in Rajasthan. It has already initiated the 
infrastructure development in these cities to meet the fuel needs of industrial, domestic, commercial 
& Transport sectors. Supply of Natural Gas will definitely bring down the pollution level in these 
cities. 
 
E. Oil & Gas Exploration 

thNatural Gas is rapidly becoming the most preferred source of energy. India ranks 12  in terms of 
Natural Gas Reserves with almost 3 bn cubic meters. Most of these reserves are located in the 
hydrocarbon rich Krishna-Godavari (KG) basin, Upper Assam and Cambay basin in Gujarat. Given 
that India imports around two thirds of its oil & gas requirement, the sector throws up some exciting 
opportunities.

Looking to this scenario and as part of its integrated strategy, the Company has also forayed into the 
Oil & Gas sector and formed a JV Company called Adani Welspun Exploration Ltd. (AWEL) with 
majority (65%) stake with Welspun Group for Oil and Gas Exploration & Production  business. 
AWEL has been awarded two oil & gas blocks in Gujarat and Assam viz. Palej block in Cambay, 
Gujarat and Margherita block in Assam under the recently concluded NELP VI through consortium. 
AWEL also plans to participate in the upcoming NELP VII bids and is actively looking at oil and gas 
blocks overseas  
  

F. Petro Products

The Company has established State of the Art – Bunkering (Ship Fuelling Business) facilities at 
Mundra Port with procurement of two products barges of 3,000 MT capacity each, storage & 
blending facility in place. This strategically located bunkering facility competes with the two major 
bunkering hubs in Asia viz. Singapore and Fujairah. The ever increasing traffic of vessels ensures 
strong demand for ship fuel in the coming years. Hence, the bunkering business has a great 
potential to achieve higher volumes by 2010.

During the year under review, in order to carry on business of bunkering in various ports of India, 
the Company has formed JV Companies with Chemoil Group of Singapore in Singapore having 
50 : 50 equity participation. This strategic Joint Ventures will significantly boost up the bunkering 
activities of the Company.   



     Business: Real Estate

The Indian real estate sector is on a strong growth path, led by rising GDP, increasing demographics, 
growing affordability, increasing impact of IT/ITES and organized retail sectors, supported by strong 
FDI and portfolio inflows. The unprecedented demand has driven the need for organized sources of 
funding, creating 'investability' and has led to the emergence of real estate as a sustainable asset 
class. Investable real estate assets in India are only 7-8% of India's GDP compared with 40-50% in 
most developed economies. The office space in India is also far lower when compared with 
international peers like Hong Kong and New York. Against this backdrop, real estate sector in India is 
likely to grow.

The Company has forayed into the Real Estate Sector through its subsidiary, Adani Infrastructure 
and Developers Private Limited (AIDPL). AIDPL has enhanced its scope of operations in a short 
span of time, developing large integrated townships as well as commercial and retail properties.
It has a approx 105 mn sq ft of Floor Space Index (“FSI”) under development, which is expected to be 
fully executed in the next five years. The projects are a combination of Sale and Lease models, on a 
case to case basis.  It has built up land bank at strategic locations and is partnering with other realty 
players to ensure that the execution moves ahead as per schedule.

Projects : 

I. “Shantigram” – an Integrated Township at Ahmedabad, Gujarat.  

The Company through its subsidiary, Shantigram Estate Management Pvt. Ltd. (SEMPL) is also in 
the process of developing a 578 acre township in Shantigram, Ahmedabad. “Shantigram” is 
intended to be one of the largest townships of its kind sprawling across 41.6 mn sq ft of saleable 
area. The project involves residential, commercial and plotted development as well as a 50 acre IT-
ITeS SEZ. The construction work on the project has started and is expected to be completed by 
financial year 2012-13. The Project shall provide the amenities like Recreation, Sports & Leisure, 
Public & Private Constituents, and Shantigram Public Utility Infrastructure. 

The SEZ has been proposed to be a part of Township and shall ensure to provide the amenities 

available within the Township.

II. Commercial & Residential Development in Mumbai

Mumbai is a commercial capital of India and is the sixth largest metro in the world. As a result, 

Mumbai offers a plethora of employment opportunities and this in turn has led to an increase in its 

population. With scare residential space to cater to an ever increasing population and dwindling 

commercial area in the event of enhanced economic activity, Mumbai realty prices have hit the roof. 

  

To capitalize on this segment, the Company through its subsidiary, Adani Developers Pvt. Ltd. 

(ADPL) has identified two properties in Mumbai.
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III. “Bandra Kurla Complex” (BKC)

BKC has been developed as one of the most sought prime commercial micro-market in                 

Mumbai.  It is expected to become the secondary Central Business District (CBD) of Mumbai due to 

the factors like the quality infrastructure, availability of land by MMRDA, established Companies, 

road width, easy accessibility, etc. 

The Company is developing 2.2 mn sq ft of commercial cum retail project at Bandra–Kurla Complex 
(BKC). The site is located at International Finance & Business Centre (IFBC) in Bandra-Kurla 
Complex (BKC). The Company proposes to develop commercial multi-storey towers in this land. 
Project work has been commenced and is expected to be complete in the next 3 financial years.  

IV. “Mill land Development” in Mumbai City (Borivali & Byculla)  

The Company is also developing a residential complex in Boriville (approx 1.2 mn sq ft) and a 
commercial complex in Byculla (approx 0.70 mn sq ft) both of which are part of the Mill Land 
Development Programme (MLDP) through a JV Company, Swayam Realtors and Traders Ltd. in 
which it has 60% stake. The land has been acquired through the BIFR process, ensuring clean title 
and no legal issues.  

V. Mundra Mass Housing Project, Mundra , Gujarat  

The Company is developing a Township project at Mundra Port and SEZ (MPSEZ), through a 
subsidiary Company, Adani Mundra SEZ Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd., spanning over 600 acres of land.                      
The project work has already been commenced. The project would provide infrastructure support to 
families involved in developing MPSEZ over the next 5-10 years. The total developable area of the 
project is expected to be approx 50 mn sq ft. 

VI. Other Developments – Surat and Kochi

Apart from the projects mentioned above, the Company is also developing 5.6 mn sq ft of 
Commercial and Residential property in Surat. Land acquisition of the 57 acres is in process and the 
construction is expected to start in financial 2008-09.

The Company has also tapped the southern region with project spanning 27 acres of land in the 
prime location of Kochi. The plan involves developing 3.2 mn sqft of saleable area with 85% high end 
residential and 15% commercial space. 

 Business: Agro

     I. Agro Commodities Trading

India is one of the world's largest food grains producers, the second largest vegetable producer and 
rice producer, making it one of the world's agricultural powerhouses. With global agricultural 
trade on a sustained rise coupled with robust economic growth across the world, the Agro 
sector has number of trade opportunities in its offing, which is an important contributor to 
India's growth story.  



The Company is a leading trader of diversified Agri Commodities in India and Internationally with 
emphasis on entire range of grains, pulses, castor and soya, oil & oil meals and food grains. The 
Company is present in every aspect of trade of bulk agro commodities from importing, selling 
domestically to exporting and doing third country trade. The Company has a geographical presence 
in Europe, Japan, Korea, China, USA, Canada, Australia, South East Asia, Middle East, South Asia 
& almost all over the globe with its Agro Business.    
  
The Company has also identified development of Rural and Farm infrastructure as a thrust area for 
the coming year and dedicates itself for the cause of creating facilities to minimize inefficiencies in 
the form of wastages being faced today by the country. The Company's trading model would be 
subsequently integrated with planned infrastructure so as take achieve higher feats.

II. Edible Oil

The Company had commenced trading in Edible Oil since 2000 and looking to the urbanization and 
increasing demand of packed oil, ventured into Edible Oil Refining through 50 : 50 JV Company, 
Adani Wilmar Ltd. (AWL). It established first Indian port based edible oil refinery through Mundra. 
With the enhancement of refining capacity, location specific products and branding efforts, AWL has 
also acquired refineries at Mantralayam, Bundi & Haldia.                     

 AWL  has promoted its products under the brand “Fortune”. “Fortune” is India's  largest edible oil brand 
commanding 17% market share. The “Fortune” brand products are available in various range of edible 
oil. It includes Soya Oil, Sunflower Oil, Groundnut Oil, Non Refined Mustard Oil and Cotton Seed Oil. 
Other growing brands of AWL  are “Naturalle”, “Raag” and “Kachi  Ghani”.  

During the year under review, AWL has added coconut oil to its product basket under the name 
“Naturelle”, which is receiving encouraging response in the market. During the last 6-7 years of its 
operations, AWL has spread its distribution network across India and exports to more than
19 countries in the Middle-East, South East Asia & East Africa. Today, AWL has distribution foot 
prints all across the country with 88 stock-points catering to more than 6000 distributors and 
numerous brokers and other trade associations. AWL's retail reach is at more than 6,00,000 outlets. 
Looking to domestic needs and established distribution network, AWL has also added Vanaspati 
Ghee under “Raag” brand and bakery shortening under “Jubilee” brand to its product basket. AWL is 
continuously increasing its market share in sunflower and vanaspati edible oil. With the best brand 
and network, AWL is poised to grow rapidly in the years to come.

III. Fruits & Vegetables

nd
India is 2  largest producer of fruits & vegetables in the world but contributes less than 1% of total 
production of fruits & vegetables due to lack of post harvest technologies, logistics and improper 
storage.  
  
To capitalize on this segment, the Company through its subsidiary viz, Adani Agri Fresh Ltd (AAFL) 
has taken the lead in developing logistics integrated storage, handling and transportation 
infrastructure for fruits and vegetables and set up modern Controlled Atmospheric Storage facilities 
for storage of fruits and vegetables with European technology at three locations viz. Rewali, Sainz, 
and Rohru in Himachal Pradesh having a combined capacity of around 18,000 MT. AAFL also plans 
to roll out of pack house facilities in Maharashtra, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka in a 
phased manner. AAFL has already set up a strong marketing network in 30 major towns across India 
for wholesale, cash & carry and organized retail. 
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The strategy of the said Company is to concentrate on products that are produced far from major 
consumption centers, are seasonal in nature and are amendable to increase in storage life using 
modern integrated cold chain facilities. This would enable the Company to leverage on its logistics 
strength while at the same time take advantage of controlled atmospheric storage technology to 
arbitrage on the price differential between peak and off peak season. 
  
Initially the project would be focused on apples and would then diversify into other fruits & vegetable 
products  in a planned phased manner.  

During the year under review, AAFL has handled 4800 MT of apples and plans to procure around 
16,000 MT of apples in the FY 08-09. 

IV. Agro Supply Chain

In order to reduce storage and transit losses of food grains and to bring additional resources through 
Private Sectors participations, Govt. of India had announced a National Policy on Handling Storage 
and Transportation of Foodgrains in June, 2004 for Bulk and conventional godowns. 

Adani Agri Logistics Ltd. (AALL) a subsidiary of the Company was awarded the project by Food 
Corporation of India to implement a bulk food grains handling, storage and transportation, which will 
be implemented on a commercial Build, Own, Operate (“BOO”) format. The project includes the 
development, design, financing, construction, operation and maintenance of state-of-the-art 
facilities at the project sites. The project is spread across 8 (eight) locations across India namely, 
Moga, Kaithal, Hooghly, Navi Mumbai, Chennai, Coimbtore and Bangalore.  AALL also plans to 
create more storage capacities & related infrastructure at multiple locations across India. 

      Business: Metals & Minerals 

The Company's metals and minerals businesses includes trading in iron ore, scrap metal and gems 
and jewellery. The Company exports iron ore to China from mines near its captive port facility in 
Belekeri, South India. The Company also plans to undertake captive iron ore mining operations in 
Karnataka. 

I. Metal Scrap Business

The Company is a leading metal scrap trader in the Indian sub-continent with buyers of India, 
Pakistan and Bangladesh. The metal scrap is sourced from world's top 5 metal scrap suppliers 
based at United States and Europe and the Company is the preferred supplier to many large 
customers.  The Company has also started metal scrap trading in the containerized shipments.

The Company is a leading player in un-branded studded jewellery & gold medallion with 
manufacturing base in Surat SEZ and has also entered into outsourcing arrangements with large 
manufacturers.



II. Ship Dismantling Business

The Company through its Subsidiary, Adani Virginia Inc. has purchased a ship dismantling 
Company in USA namely, Bay Bridge Enterprise LLC. (“Bay Bridge”), a ship breaking unit which is 
one of the six yards registered with Maritime Authority of USA with highest order of environment 
protection. The said Company has already dismantled 10 Vessels from Maritime Administration of 
US since June 2005.  It would now be focusing on acquiring the vessel from US Navy. Bay Bridge 
has also started Trans-load operation in Virginia to facilitate Scrap Trading business of its parent 
Company. The Company is currently serving 2000-3000 Mt. of Cargo each Month and projecting the 
Volumes for Trans-load to 60000 Mt. by Next Year. 

The heading requirement of dismantling obsolete vessels combined with growing requirement of 
scrap metal world wide has led to an increased demand for ship breakers in USA. Bay Bridge will 
capitalize the opportunities in the ship breaking business through it's another footing in operation at 
Brownville, Texas. The Company will create a Ship-breaking Facility in Brownville, Texas and shall 
be able to capitalize the US market more than 25%.

Shipping as a backbone to Company's businesses

Shipping is the largest and the most important mode of international transportation for the country. 
Around 95% by volume and 70% by value of India's overseas trade is sea-borne. 

To capitalize on this growing segment and to backward integrate its existing strong global trading, 
logistics and infrastructure operations which are largely sea borne, the Company has established 
subsidiary Companies in Singapore to manage its shipping and freight operations.  

During the year under review, the Company has chartered around 273 ships to move various 
products sum-up to 14 Mn Mt. The Company also plans to acquire two capsize vessels newly built 
with expected delivery by Dec 2010 in the initial phase. 

The Company will also use the fleet of vessels for handling the third party cargo. This will help the 
Company to effectively manage its international cargo operations and to generate additional 
revenues from shipping its own captive as well as third party cargo. 

Competition/Outlook on opportunities

Competition

The businesses in which the Company is engaged are highly competitive and has competitors in 
each of its major business operations on a local, regional, national and international levels. Although 
barriers to entry are high in a number of the Company's businesses due to the costs associated with 
sourcing commodities and managing their transportation, the Company faces additional 
competition from new entrants and from its existing customers who are becoming more involved in 
sourcing to satisfy their own supply requirements. The markets for the Company's metals, minerals, 
ores, agro-commodities and energy products are also price competitive and sensitive to product 
substitution. In many of these businesses, the Company's competitors have greater economies of 
scale and are also more vertically integrated and generally not only act as commodities merchants 
but also as processors, which allow them to make a higher margin. Competition with these and other 
suppliers, processors and distributors is based on price, quality of service and geographic location. 
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Competitive Strengths and Outlook on opportunities

The Company will continue to focus on markets where opportunities for market penetration and 
expansion of market share and client base exist. The Company intends to focus on energy, agro-
commodity and infrastructure driven opportunities, metals and minerals sales (including iron ore 
and steel scrap sales). The Company believes its expertise in these types of markets enables it to 
effectively identify and drive new business opportunities. The combination of commodities expertise 
and growing logistics capabilities presents it with opportunities to attain potentially higher operating 
efficiencies and associated revenue benefits in the Indian, Asia-Pacific and Middle Eastern markets 
in which it chiefly operates.

The Company will also continue to focus on and seek to enter higher value businesses, which it 
believes present attractive opportunities and enable it to reduce its exposure to the cyclicality of the 
commodities trading business. In the energy sector, the Company intends to move into power 
generation and distribution alongside its existing power trading activities. In the agro-commodities 
sector, the Company is entering into storage and transportation of foodgrain, fruit and vegetables 
alongside its existing production and sale of edible oils and other agro-commodities. In the real 
estate business, the Company intends to focus on developing residential and commercial property 
projects in India. The Company anticipates that its focus on and entry into these businesses will 
provide it with opportunities to improve its operating margins.

The Company intends to pursue alliance opportunities to enhance its capabilities, address specific 
industry opportunities, develop its technical expertise and price its products more competitively.
 The Company has demonstrated the capacity to operate joint ventures with partners in segments 
such as Agro Commodities, Edible Oil Refining, Mining Operations, Oil Exploration, Bunkering and 
plans to actively explore additional opportunities to form alliances aimed at capturing more of the 
trading and infrastructure development value chain. The Company intends to continue to 
opportunistically evaluate inorganic growth opportunities, in keeping with its strategy to grow and 
develop its market share and further its operations in core sectors.

The Company's diversified range of products and services has enabled it to generate revenues 
throughout the periods of volatile commodity prices and demand fluctuations. The Company 
believes that its industry expertise, provides it with insights and market intelligence that enable it to 
more effectively capitalize on and manage risks associated with opportunities across all its markets.

The Company's broad geographical presence also enables it to closely monitor and respond to 
global supply and demand imbalances; identify opportunities for strategic investments to support its 
global diversification strategies; and enhance its supplier substitution capabilities.

Risk and Concerns

The Company has a well-defined system of identifying and mitigating risks. Risk identification 
process starts at the department level. Risks identified at the departmental level are collated in the 
Company-level risk register for review and discussion by the Management. On the basis of 
discussion and review, risk ratings and mitigations plans are finalized and documented in Risk 
Register. For each key risk, responsibility is assigned to the concerned department head. Risk 
Register containing key risks, mitigation plan and responsibility assigned for the risks is presented to 
the Audit Committee for review and discussion. This process ensures that the Company is cognizant 
of possible risks and builds resilience to address the same. Some of the key risks and concerns and 
steps taken to mitigate the adverse impact of same are as follows :



Operational risk 

The Company's widespread global operations could impact its operational efficiency.
The international market continues to be fiercely competitive with a plethora of offerings across price 
points and the geo-political risk in the Middle East and other politically sensitive markets could also 
pose a challenge for maintaining the profitability of its international operations. For smooth operation 
of its businesses the Company also requires certain approvals, licenses, approvals, registrations 
and permissions delays in which could affect business plans. 

The Company has initiated adequate insurance covers to hedge against these risks in business. 
These are assessed on a regular basis.  

Foreign Exchange Risk

Being a major importer and exporter, the Company is also associated with risks relating to 
Foreign Exchange fluctuations, interest rates etc. The export realizations of the Company may be 
affected adversely on account of the appreciation of the Indian Rupee against the US dollar. 

The Company manages this risk through active hedging strategy.  

Borrowing Risk

In order to finance the growing funds requirements due to expansion of business activities, the 
Company depends on the borrowed funds from Indian as well as Foreign debt markets. Factors like 
fluctuations in the interest rates, non availability funds, restrictions imposed by regulatory framework 
etc. may affect the profitability of the Company adversely.  

The Company has considerably reduced the adverse effect of this risk by implementing systematic 
procedures to ensure strict and economical use of borrowed funds, active liasoning with the banks 
and financial institutes for various credit facilities.  The Company  has also successfully tapped the 
international financial market to ripe the benefits of prevailing low cost regime.  

Attrition Rate 

One of the most challenging tasks faced by the Company is the high attrition rate. The vast 
opportunities available in the market and the rising trend of salaries offered by different 
sections of the market have resulted in the Company losing good employees. To contain the 
attrition rate has been a major task before the Company. 

A lot of measures such as improvement in the remuneration structure, growth opportunities
and various training programmes have been initiated by the Company's Human Resource 
Department to address this issue.  

Business of Success Annual Report // 2007 - 2008
34



Business of SuccessAnnual Report // 2007 - 2008
35

Others

Apart from the risk on account of International Trading Operations, various businesses of the 
Company are exposed to certain operating business risks; which are managed by regular 
monitoring and corrective actions. 

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has a full fledged operational Internal Audit Department, which is headed by Head – 
Internal Audit and assisted by a team of highly qualified professionals. The Department closely 
monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of internal control systems, their compliance 
with operating systems and accounting procedures and policies at all Company's locations including 
its subsidiaries. Its suggestions and reports are periodically placed before the Audit Committee of 
Directors and corrective actions, if any, are recommended for implementation. It is also equipped to 
perform audit under SAP framework. 

The Company has also successfully implemented SAP system for every possible area of 
deployment. SAP is the most suitable Enterprise Resource Planning software, which provides for 
availability of robust information and can be operated from anywhere in the world. 

The Company believes that it has adequate internal control systems and procedures to safeguard 
the resources and assets against any misuse and are used efficiently and economically. Reliable 
and accurate financial and operational information is available on time and statutory laws and 
regulations are continuously complied with. 

Financial Performance with respect to operational performance

The Management is pleased to inform you that the year under review witnessed many fold 
increase in the business activities of the Company. We take pride in informing you that the 
Company has maintained its dominance, achieved a significant growth and recorded a yet 
another stellar financial performance.  

Details of various milestones achieved and financial performance of the Company with respect to 
operational performance are as under :  

Revenues: 
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During the year under review, the Company has 
recorded total income to the tune of Rs. 11,595.44 
Crores as compared to Rs. 10151.66 Crores of the 
previous year which show an increase of 14% over the 
last year.  



Fixed Assets (Net Block) :
stThe Net Block of the Company as at 31  March, 2008 is Rs. 201.95 Crores as compared to Rs. 204.72 

st
Crores as at 31  March, 2007.

Profits and profitability
During the year, the Company generated earnings before interest, depreciation, tax and appropriation 
(EBIDTA) of Rs. 518.14 Crores compared to  Rs. 349.55 Crores, which includes a growth of 48 per cent 
over previous year. Net profit margin was significantly higher by 107 percent. Earnings per share (EPS) 

stof the Company as on 31  March, 2008 is Rs. 12.66/- on face value of Re. 1 each. 

stPBT of the Company has increased to Rs. 352.51 Crores for the period ended 31  March, 2008 
stcompared to Rs. 198.31 Crores for the period ended 31  March, 2007 reflecting a handsome

growth of 78%.
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The Management is pleased with the financial milestones achieved by the Company during the year 
under review and confident of achieving bright growth in the years to come. 

  Human Resources

The Human Resources function of the Company continued its initiatives to develop and nurture talent. 
During the year under review, the Company conducted surveys across various categories of employees 
at all levels to gauge the level of employee satisfaction. Based on the feedback, appropriate initiatives 
were initiated. The Corporate Human Resource Department (HRD) of the Company is committed to 
improve employee satisfaction at all levels and create a motivated, responsive and accountable 
organization.  

The Company considers its human resources as one of its main assets and is constantly focusing on 
strengthening its organizational culture with a view to attract and retain best talent. To sustain the 
competitive advantage robust talent identification and validation process are being conducted through 
campus recruitment from the leading institutions and colleges.  

vPeople Development 

ØNotable steps were taken in respect of critical area of knowledge building by giving special thrust 
to people development, learning, sharing of knowledge and best practices.  

ØA state-of-the-art learning centre “Adani Knowledge Centre” established to grow intellectual 
capital. 

ØExternal training programmes were aimed at development of key talent. 

ØLeadership and management development programmes conducted to enhance managerial 
capability. 

vEmployee relations:

On Industrial relations front, the Company continued to enjoy a cordial and harmonious relations with its 
employees at all levels.  

It is pleasure to note that the Company has now become the “preferred employer” for talent across the 
nation.

  Cautionary Note

The statements in this Report describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, and 
expectations may constitute “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations. Forward looking statements are identified in this report, by using the words “anticipates”, 
“believes”, “expects”, “intends” and similar expressions in such statements.  

Although we believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, these forward-
looking statements may be influenced by numerous risks and uncertainties that could cause actual 
outcomes and results to be materially different from those expressed or implied. 

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking 
statements on the basis, of any subsequent developments, information or events. 



ANNEXURE IV
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Corporate Governance is the process by which the values, principles, management policies and 
procedures of a Company are made manifest in the real world. The quintessential elements of corporate 
governance are transparency, accountability and integrity. Good Corporate Governance not only helps in 
building trust with all stakeholders including customers, suppliers, creditors and diverse investors but also 
can be adjudged as the very heart of shareholders value creation in the long run. 

The Company presents summary of the practices it followed during the year in deference to its commitment 
to fairness, transparency and accountability.             

A. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IS A VITAL MECHANISM WHICH TOUCHES EVERY FACET OF 
THE FUNCTIONING OF A CORORATE AND ITS STAKEHOLDERS. IT IS NOT AN END IN ITSELF 
BUT A CONTINUOUS JOURNEY WHICH AIMS TO BRING ABOUT CORPORATE DEMOCRACY AT 
ALL LEVELS OF THE CORPORATE ENTITY RESULTING INTO SUSTAINED GROWTH FOR 
COMPANY AND ITS STAKEHOLDERS.” 

Adani Enterprises Ltd. (AEL) being a flagship Company of Adani Group believes that for a Company to 
be successful, it must maintain global standards of corporate conduct towards all its stakeholders.
Your Company's philosophy on corporate governance envisages the alignment of the highest levels of 
transparency, accountability and equity in all facts of its operations and in all its interactions with its 
stakeholders. Your Company has a strong legacy and roots of stringent corporate governance 
principles. Your Company strongly believes that principles of fairness, transparency and accountability 
are the cornerstones for good corporate governance. It is the Company's continuous endeavour to 
achieve the highest levels of corporate governance. Hence, Corporate Governance to AEL means not 
only compliance with the provisions of Company law, allied acts and listing agreement but also 
management's responsibility to work with morality, ethics and accountability towards stakeholders and 
society for their acts and decisions. 

At Adani Enterprises Limited (AEL), we firmly believe in and continue to abide by the following 
principles of effective Corporate Governance :

ØAccountability, supported by robust internal processes of management oversight and control for 

monitoring of performance.

ØEstablishment of well defined corporate structure to ensure checks and balances and delegates 

decision making to appropriate levels in the organization. 

ØLong-term creation of wealth for all stakeholders by balancing the enforcement and protection of 

the rights of all stakeholders.  
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Compliance with Clause 49 of The Listing Agreement

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code enriched in Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement.  

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS    
                                               
Composition and Category

The Board of Directors of your Company represents an optimum mix of professionalism, knowledge and 
experience and consists of professionals drawn from diverse fields. The Board members possess the 
requisite skills, experience and expertise to guide the Company. The day-to-day management of the 
Company is conducted by the Managing Director and the Whole-time Director subject to the guidance, 
supervision and control of the Board of Directors. 

Brief resume of each of our Director is available on the website of the Company at www.adani.in. 

The composition of the Board was in conformity with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code of 
st

the Listing Agreement as on 31  March, 2008, it consisted 5 Non Executive Directors (63% of the total board 
strength) including 4 Independent Directors (50% of the total board strength) out of total strength of 8 
directors. The same is illustrated as under :

As on date the Company has 7 Directors on its board out of which 4 Directors are Non-Executive Directors 
(including 3 Independent Directors). The Company is in process of appointing one Non Executive and 
Independent Director. 

Your Company immensely enriched by the professional expertise of its independent directors in their 
individual capacity as Independent Professionals / Business Executives and through their invaluable 
experience in achieving corporate excellence. 

Board Procedure 

The Board plays a vital role in ensuring good corporate governance. Its style of functioning is democratic. 
The Members of the Board have always had complete liberty to express their views on the subjects and 
decisions are taken on the basis of consensus arrived at after detailed discussion. 

The Board's role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined. In addition to this it directs 
and guides the activities of the Management towards the set goals and seeks accountability with a view to 
ensure that the corporate philosophy and mission (viz. “To develop, assimilate and share the knowledge; to 
apply the acquired expertise across the globe, for benefit of stakeholders'; to do so profitability.”) is 
accomplished. It also sets standards of corporate behaviour at all times and ensure strict compliance with 
laws and regulations. 

The Board meetings are generally held at the registered office of the Company in Ahmedabad. Calendar of 
the Board meetings is finalised in advance for each year. The board meets at least once a quarter. It is the 
practice of the Company to place before the Board, all the mandatory items as prescribed in Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement. The detailed agenda papers with explanatory notes are circulated to the Directors in 
advance. As a part of the Board agenda, minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company,
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 its committees and minutes of subsidiary Companies are also circulated to all the Directors for their review. 
Senior executives from various fields are also invited to attend the board meetings as special invitees in 
certain circumstances. 

The Compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company as prepared and compiled by the Compliance 
Officer is circulated to all the Directors along with the agenda and placed/reviewed in each Board Meeting.

th
During the financial year under review, Seven Board Meetings were held on following dates 16  April, 2007, 

st th th th th th 21 May, 2007, 27 July, 2007, 29 September, 2007, 29  October, 2007, 4  January, 2008 and 29 January, 
2008.  

The details regarding attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, AGM and other directorships held are 
given below.  

No. of Board Committees # 
(other than AEL) 

Chairman / Member. 
in which

 
  
                   

Name of Director Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended 
(Out of 7 
Meetings 

held)

 

Attendance 
at the AGM 

held on 
September 

29, 2007.

 

No. of other 
Directorships

 

held 

 

(Other than 
AEL)*

 

Chairman      
 

Member

Shri Gautam S. 

Adani
 

Executive  Chairman
  

Promoter
 

Executive
 6

 
Yes

 
10

 
2

 
1

 

Shri Rajesh S. 
Adani 

Managing Director 

Promoter 

Executive 
6 Yes  14  1  5  

Shri Pradeep Mittal 
Wholetime Director 

Executive 
Director  

2 No  2  -  -  

Shri Vasant S. 

Adani  

Promoter 
Non 

Executive
 

4 Yes  -  -  -  

Shri C.R. Shah
 (Upto 23rd April, 2008)

 

Non 
Executive

 (Independent)
 

7
 

Yes
 

12
 

2
 

5
 

Dr. A.C.  Shah
 

Non 
Executive

 (Independent)

 

2
 

No
 

5
 

1
 

2
 

Dr. Pravin  P. Shah

 

Non 
Executive

 
(Independent)

 

3

 

No

 

5

 

1

 

6

 

Shri Jay H. Shah

 

Non 
Executive

(Independent)

2

 

No

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
# It relates to Audit Committee, Shareholders Grievances Committee and Remuneration Committee only.

* excludes directorships in Indian Private Limited Companies and foreign Companies and includes directorships in 
Private Ltd Companies which are subsidiaries of public Ltd.
As required by the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the listing agreement with Stock Exchanges, on Corporate 
Governance, none of the Directors of the Company held Directorships in more than 15 Public Limited Companies, 
memberships of Board Committees (Audit & Investors Grievance Committees) in excess of 10 and Chairmanship of 
Board Committee in excess of 5. 
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Notes on Directors appointment / re-appointment

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed are given in the explanatory 
statement annexed to the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 

3. BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES 

The Company has constituted following Board level Committees 1) Audit Committee 2) Shareholders / 
Investors Grievance Committee 3) Remuneration Committee as per provision of the Companies Act, 1956 
and Corporate Governance Code. The Committees comprises of experienced members of the Board who 
ensure implementation of aforesaid high standards of Corporate Governance. 

A. Audit Committee  

th
The  Audit Committee, which was constituted on 27  January, 2001, consists of following directors as 
under : 

Shri C.R. Shah, Chairman of the Audit Committee ceases to be a member of the committee on account of 
rdhis resignation w.e.f. 23  April, 2008. Due to his resignation, composition of Audit Committee was

thre-constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28  May, 2008. Shri Jay H. 
th

Shah was appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 28  May, 2008. All members of 
the Audit Committee are qualified professionals having financial management expertise.  

The Committee also invites such other senior executives of the Company as it considers appropriate.
The meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors, head of finance, 
Company Secretary and other executives. The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee. 

Broad Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers all the areas mentioned under Clause 49(II) of the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and other terms as 
may be referred by the Board of Directors, which interalia includes to review financial reporting process and 
all financial results, statements and disclosures, review of internal audit reports, internal control systems & 
procedures, to meet statutory auditors, internal auditors and to discuss their findings, review scope of audit, 
post audit discussion, audit qualifications, if any, to review related party transactions, reviewing the 
performance of the statutory and internal auditors and fix their remuneration, review  compliance of listing 
agreements and other requirements of the Company. The Committee also reviews the risk factors, 
mitigation plan and responsibility assigned for the risks. All relevant information and reports are placed 
before the Audit Committee in compliance with the provisions of the corporate governance code.

Sr.  No. Name of the Director  Category  

1. Shri Jay H. Shah  Chairman  
 

2. Shri C.R. Shah (upto 23.04.2008)  Chairman  

3. Dr. A.C. Shah  Member  

4. Dr. P.P. Shah  Member  

(Appointed as chairman w.e.f. 28.05.2008)
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As a part of good corporate governance practice, the Audit Committee also reviews the Risk factors and 
project reports of Subsidiary Companies.  

Details of the meetings of Audit Committee and attendance

st
The Calendar of meetings is fixed in advance for each year. The committee met four times as on 21  May, 

th th th2007, 27  July, 2007, 29  October, 2007 and 29  January, 2008.

Details of meetings attended by the members thereof are as follows:

Minutes of the Audit Committee are circulated and reviewed at the subsequent Board Meetings. 

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 
2007.

B. Remuneration Committee  

rd
The Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted on 23  June, 2001. It is a non mandatory 
requirement as per the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Constitution of the Remuneration 
Committee is as under : 

Quorum of the Committee is of two members.     

Terms of reference:

The broad terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are : 

Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Director  Category  No. of meetings 

attended  

1. Shri Jay H. Shah  Chairman  
 

2 

2. Shri C.R. Shah  
(upto 23.04.2008)  

Chairman  4 

3. Dr. A.C. Shah  Member  2 

4. Dr. P.P. Shah  Member  3 

Sr. 
No.  

Name of Directors  Position Category  

1. Dr. P.P. Shah  Chairman  Non - Executive

 
Independent  

2. Dr. A.C. Shah  Member  
 

Independent  

3. Shri C.R. Shah  
(upto 23.04.2008)  

Member  
 

Independent  

4. Shri Jay H. Shah  Member  
 

 

(Appointed as chairman w.e.f. 28.05.2008)

Independent

Non - Executive

Non - Executive

Non - Executive
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Øto recommend to the Board the remuneration including Commission payable to the Executive 
Director(s), revision in salary based on evaluation of their performance as well as the Company's 
performance, subject to such consents & permissions as may be required. 

ØThe remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors based on their performance and defined 
assessment criteria.  

The terms of appointment and remuneration including commission payable to the Executive Directors are 
recommended by Remuneration Committee and are approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders 
of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Committee is as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement with stock exchanges. 

Meeting and Attendance

No Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the year under review i.e. F.Y. 2007-08.  

Remuneration Policy

A. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the Company are being paid an amount of Rs. 10,000/- as 
sitting fees for attending each meeting of Board and committee thereof viz. Audit Committee, Shareholders' 
/ Investors' Grievances Committee and Remuneration Committee. Executive Directors are not being paid 
sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. 

During the year, no remuneration other than sitting fees as mentioned herein below have been paid to any 
of the Non-executive and independent Directors of the Company.  No remuneration has been paid to one 
Non-executive and Non-independent Director of the Company. 

None of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company. 

The details of sitting fees paid to Non Executive Directors during the Financial Year 2007-08. are as under:

Sitting Fees paid during                         
FY 200 -087  

Name  

Board 

Meeting  
Committee 

Meeting  

TOTAL  No. of 

Shares 

held  

Dr. P.P. Shah  0.30 0.30 0.60 6000 

Dr. A.C. Shah  0.20 0.40 0.60 NIL  

Shri C.R. Shah  

(Upto 23.04.2008)  

0.60 0.80 1.40 NIL  

Shri Jay H. Shah  0.20 0.40 0.60 NIL  

(Rs. in Lacs)
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B. Remuneration to Executive Directors.  

The remuneration of Executive Directors i.e Executive Chairman, Managing Director & Whole time Director 
consists of fixed salary and other perquisites. The said Remuneration has been duly approved by the 
Remuneration Committee, the Board and is as per the resolutions passed at the respective meetings of the 
Remuneration Committee, Board of Directors and Annual General Meetings. Details of the remuneration 
paid to them during the year 2007-08 are as under : 

Name & 

Designation  
Salary Perquisites 

& 

Allowances  

Commission*

 

Incentive 
Remuneration

 

Total  

Shri Gautam 

S. Adani  
Executive 

Chairman  

0.96 0.12 7.02 NIL  8.10 

Shri Rajesh S. 

Adani  

Managing 

Director  

1.45 0.21 7.02 NIL  8.68 

Shri Pradeep 

Mittal  
Whole -time 
Director  

0.45 2.48 NIL  NIL  2.93 

(Rs. In Crores)

* Payable in FY 2008-09

There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees under the resolutions governing the 
appointment of Executive Chairman, Managing Director and Whole-time Director. 

The Company has not granted stock options to the Managing / Executive Directors or Employees. 

The Executive Chairman, Managing Director and Wholetime Director so long as they functions as such 
shall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending any meetings of Board or Committees thereof.

The Board of Directors review the Minutes of the Remuneration Committee Meetings at subsequent Board 
Meetings. 

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Business of Success Annual Report // 2007 - 2008
44



C. Shareholders'/Investors' Grievances Committee  – 
      
The Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance Committee of the Board of Directors which was constituted on

rd23  June, 2001, comprises of following members :

Due to resignation of Shri C.R. Shah from the directorship of the Company, the composition of 
Shareholder's / Investor's Grievance Committee was re-constituted by the Board of Directors of the 

th
Company in their meeting held on 28  May, 2008. Shri Jay H. Shah was appointed as Chairman of the 

thCommittee in his place with effect from 28  May, 2008.

Mr. Parthiv Parikh, Asst. Company Secretary is designated as the Compliance Officer as per the 
requirements of Listing Agreement. 

Terms of Reference :

The functioning and terms of reference of The Shareholder's/Investors` Grievance Committee of the 
Company includes :  

ØTo look into the redressal of investors' grievances including related to transfer / transmission of 
shares and ensure expeditious share transfer process, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
dematerialization / rematerialisation of share certificates, replacement of lost / stolen/ mutilated 
share certificates etc. 

ØOther related issues and to strengthen investors' relations.  

The terms of reference of the committee cover the matters specified under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with Stock Exchanges. 

The Committee also monitors and reviews the performance and service standards of Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents of the Company viz, M/s. Pinnacle Shares Registry Pvt. Ltd., and also provides continuous 
guidance to improve the standard of service levels for investor relations.

Meetings and Attendance 

st th th th 
The Committee met four times on 21  May, 2007, 27  July, 2007, 29 October, 2007 and 29 January, 2008 
during the year under review.

Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Director  Position  Category  

1. Shri Jay H. Shah  Chairman  
 

Non-Executive-  

Independent  

2. Shri C.R. Shah*  
(upto 23.04.2008)  

 Non-Executive-  
Independent  

3. Shri Vasant S. Adani  Member  Non-Executive  

4. Dr. A.C. Shah  Member  Non-Executive-  
Independent  

Chairman

(Appointed as chairman w.e.f. 28.05.2008)

Business of SuccessAnnual Report // 2007 - 2008
45



Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.  

The Minutes of the Shareholder's/Investors` Grievance Committee are reviewed by the Board of Directors 
at the subsequent Board Meeting. 

Details of Shareholders' Complaints 

During the year, 125 complaints were received from the shareholders and were resolved to the satisfaction 
of shareholders. No investor's grievance remains pending for more than 30 days.

Share Transfer Committee

The Board of Directors has delegated the powers of approving transfer/transmission of shares, issue of 
duplicate share certificates and other related formalities to the Share Transfer Committee comprising of 
Shri Gautam S. Adani, Executive Chairman, Shri Rajesh S. Adani, Managing Director and Shri Vasant S. 
Adani, Director of the Company. 

The meetings are held at least once in a fortnight. The Board of Directors review the Minutes of such 
Committee at subsequent Board Meeting. 

No requests for share transfers are pending as on 31.03.2008 except those that are disputed and / or sub-
judiced.  

Investor Services

M/s Pinnacle Shares Registry Pvt. Ltd are acting as a Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, of the Company. 
They have adequate infrastructure and VSAT connectivity with both the depositories, which facilitate better 
and faster services to the investors.

a) Name and Address of Compliance Officer is as follows

Mr. Parthiv Parikh
Asst. Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Adani Enterprises Ltd.
“Adani House”, Near Mithakhali Six Roads, Navarangpura,  Ahmedabad – 380 009

Tel No. (079) 25555 555, 26565 555, 25555 080(DID),  Fax No. (079)  26565 500, 25555 500
E-mail : parthiv.parikh@adani.in  &  jaladhi.shukla@adani.in 

Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Director  Status No. of meetings 

attended  

1. Shri Jay H. Shah  Chairman  
 

2 

2. Shri C.R. Shah   
(upto 23.04.2008)  

Chairman  4 

3. Dr. A.C. Shah  Member  2 

4. Shri Vasant S. Adani  Member  1 

(Appointed as chairman w.e.f. 28.05.2008)
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4. PARTICULARS OF PAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS 

Location, day, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last three years are as under :  

Financial 

Year  
Day & Date  Location of Meeting  Time  No. of Special 

resolutions 

passed  

2004-

2005 
Friday  
12th August, 2005  

Hotel Le Meridian,  
Khanpur,  
Ahmedabad -   380 001  

11.00 

a.m.  
1 

2005-

2006 
Saturday,  
29th July, 2006 

Lion's Hall, 

Nr. Mithakhali Six 

Roads, Ellisbridge, 

Ahmedabad  - 380006  

11.00 

a.m.  
2 

2006-07 Saturday,  
th 

29 September, 07 

Hotel Le Meridian, 

Khanpur, 

Ahmedabad - 380001  

10.00 

a.m.  

1 

Details on Extraordinary General Meetings (EGM) held in the last three years :

No Extra Ordinary General Meetings were held during the year 2004-05 and 2005-06.

Financial 

Year  
Day & Date  Location of Meeting  Time  No. of Special 

resolutions 

passed  

2006-07 Saturday  

30th December,  2006.

 

7th Floor, Shikhar,  
Near Adani House, 
Navrangpura, 
Ahmedabad – 380 009.  

11.30 

a.m.  

1 

2007-08 Monday,  

4th February, 2008.  

7th Floor, Shikhar,  
Near Adani House, 
Navrangpura, 
Ahmedabad – 380 009. 

9.30 

a.m.  

1 
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Date  
of  
Notice 

Date of 
Result  

Special Resolutions 
passed  

Results 

16-04 
-2007 

04-06            
-2007 

1) Approval u/s. 372A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 to 
authorize the Board to 
make inter-corporate 
investments, give loans 
and provide guarantee / 
security.  

 
2) Approval u/s. 17 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 to 
alter main object clause of 
Memorandum of 
Association.  

1. Total number of votes polled 
in favour of the resolution were 
104,391,412 as against 6578 
votes polled against the 
resolution. Resolution was 
passed as special resolution. 
 
 
2. Total number of votes polled 
in favour of the resolution were 
104,369,892 as against 2853 
votes polled against the 
resolution. Resolution was 
passed as special resolution.  

29-09 
-2007 

23-11 
-2007 

1. Approval u/s. 372A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 to 
authorize the Board to 
make inter-corporate 
investments, give loans 
and provide guarantee / 
security.  

 
2. Approval u/s. 17 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 to 
alter main object clause of 
Memorandum of 
Association. 
 

1. Total number of votes polled 
in favour of the resolution were 
129,403,082 as against 1723 
votes polled against the 
resolution. Resolution was 
passed as special resolution. 
 
2. Total number of votes polled 
in favour of the resolution were 
129,400,727 as against 4058 
votes polled against the 
resolution. Resolution was 
passed as special resolution. 

29-01 
-2008 

27-03 
-2008 

 Approval u/s. 372A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 to 
authorize the Board to 
make inter-corporate 
investments, give loans 
and provide guarantee / 
security.  

 

Total number of votes polled 
in favour of the resolution were 
165,260,307 as against 60,666 
votes polled against the 
resolution. Resolution was 
passed as special resolution. 
 

Postal Ballot

During the year under review, the voting by means of postal ballot processes were conducted thrice for 
seeking approval of the shareholders as under :
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5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company does not have a material non-listed Indian Subsidiary and hence, it is not mandatory to have 
an independent director on the Board of such subsidiary Company. The Audit Committee reviews the 
financial statements, particularly, the investments made by the Company's non-listed subsidiary 
Companies. The minutes of all the subsidiary Companies (including off-shore subsidiaries) are being 
placed before the Board for its review.  

The accounts of all the subsidiary Companies are being placed before the Board of the Company and the 
attention of the Directors is being drawn to all the significant transactions and arrangements entered into by 
the subsidiary Companies. The risk factors and project reports of the Subsidiary Companies are also 
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.                          

6. DIVIDEND PAYMENT AND HISTORY (EQUITY SHARES)

Year Rate Per Share (Rs.) Dividend Payout         
(Rs. in Lacs)# 

 
1996-97* 30.00% 3.00 222.44 
1997-98 30.00% 3.00 330.71 
1998-99 30.00% 3.00 330.71 
1999-00* 30.00% 3.00 415.60 
2000-01 30.00% 3.00 661.42 
2001-02 30.00% 3.00 661.42 
2002-03 30.00% 3.00 661.42 
2003-04 40.00% 4.00 881.89 
2004-05 

 
40.00% 0.40 902.16 

2005-06 
 

45.00% 0.45 1017.86 
 

2006-07  
(Interim) 

45.00% 0.45 1109.19 

2007-08 
(Proposed) 

60.00% 
 

0.60 1730.26 

* Bonus issue in proportion of 1 : 1    
# Including dividend tax

thThe face value of shares changed to Re. 1/- per share w.e.f 7  August, 2004.

The postal ballot process were carried out as per the procedure laid down in terms of Section 192A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Passing of the Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001.
All the abovesaid Resolutions were declared passed through requisite majority. Mr. Rohit Choksi, an 
eminent Practising Chartered Accountant was appointed as Scrutiniser for conducting all three postal ballot 
processes.  

No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed by the Postal Ballot at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 
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7. OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions: 

The Company has not entered into any material transaction with any related parties as per Accounting 
Standard that may have any potential conflict with the interests of the Company.  The Register of 
Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are interested is being placed before the 
Board regularly for its approval. 

The Audit Committee reviews the related party transactions undertaken by the Company in the 
ordinary course of business. 

Transactions with Related Parties are disclosed in Note 29 of Schedule 19 to the Financial Statements 
of the Annual Report. 

b) Details of non-compliance by the Company

The Company has complied with the various rules and regulations prescribed by the SEBI, Stock 
Exchanges and Statutory Authorities on all matters related to the capital markets during the last three 
years. 

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company.  
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c ) Code of Conduct 

The Code of conduct applicable to all Directors and employees of the Company have been posted on 
the Company's website. For the year under review, all Directors and senior management personnel of 
the Company have confirmed their adherence to the provisions of the said Codes. 

A declaration signed by the Managing Director of the Company is given below: 

The Company is committed to conduct its business in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and 
regulations and with highest standards of business ethics. The Company has adopted a “Code of Conduct” 
which is applicable to all directors and designated employees.

I hereby certify that all the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed the compliance with the 
Code of Conduct under a certificate of Code of Conduct for the year 2007-08.

Rajesh S. Adani
Managing Director 

The Company also has in force a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading in the Shares of the 
Company for directors and other specified Persons in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 1992;

d) CEO / CFO Certificate 

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company have furnished the requisite 
certificate to the Board of Directors under Clause 49 VII of the Listing Agreement.  

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a) Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Results

Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It is in 
process of transmitting information, and plans to stakeholders. The Company regularly interacts with 
shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as result announcement, annual 
report, media releases, website and also through communication. 

The Company publishes the quarterly, half-yearly and annual results in the leading newspapers such 
as Business Standard (E) and Lokstatta Jansatta (G) after its announcement. 

These results are also made available on the website of the Company www.adani.in.  

The quarterly results, shareholding pattern and Annual Report of the Company are also posted on 
SEBI's website www.sebiedifar.nic.in incompliance to Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement.  

b) The Company intimates to Stock Exchanges all price sensitive and other informations which are 
material and relevant to the shareholders.  

c) Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached with the Directors Report in this Annual 
Report.
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9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A. Details of ensuing AGM : 

Day and Date Time Venue 
Friday 

26th September, 
2008 

10.00 a.m. Bhaikaka Bhavan, Law Garden, Ellisbridge, 
Ahmedabad – 380 006. 

B. Financial Calendar  :
(tentative and subject to change)

st stYour Company observes 1  April to 31  March as its financial year. The tentative schedule of Board 
st

Meetings for consideration of financial results for the year ended 31  March, 2009 are as under : 

Limited Review by the Auditors : August end, 2008
November end, 2008
February end, 2009

C. Date of Book Closure :
th th

20  September, 2008 to 26  September, 2008 (both days inclusive)

D. Dividend Payment Date :
st

On or around 1  October, 2008.

E. Listing on Stock Exchanges:
(a) The equity shares of the Company are listed with the following stock exchanges 

Period Approval of Quarterly results
th

For the first quarter ending 30  June, 2008 : By July, 2008.

For the second quarter and half year ending : By October, 2008.

30th September, 2008

For the third quarter ending : By January, 2009

31st December, 2008
st

For the year ending 31  March, 2009 : By April/ May 2009. 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.  (BSE) 
 P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,  
Fort, Mumbai  - 400 001 
 

(Stock Code : 512599) 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) 
“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra -Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051. 

(Stock Code : ADANIENT) 
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The Shares of the Company are traded compulsorily in Demat Segments. The ISIN No. allotted to the 
Company's equity shares under the depository system is INE423A01024.

Annual Issuer charges for the year 2008-2009 have been paid to the above depositories. 

F. Market Price Data : High, Low and volime during each month in financial year 2007-08.
Monthly share price movement during the year 2007-08 at BSE & NSE :

(b)  Depositories :    1.  National Securities Depository Ltd. 
Trade World, 4 th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati 
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, 
Mumbai – 400 013. 

 
  2. Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 28 th Floor, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400 023. 

BSE NSE 

Month High Low Volume High Low Volume 

       

April 233.00 201.05 4166874 232.50 200.00 3656308 

May 252.95 191.05 4750571 254.00 191.55 4820276 

June 282.45 229.50 3263716 282.50 228.50 3075442 

July 335.00 268.00 3841847 334.00 268.00 3286044 

August 367.00 310.00 5171971 369.95 312.20 5227206 

September 582.00 344.05 10961630 583.90 341.00 10276410 

October 870.00 562.50 12738311 869.85 565.00 14975851 

November 885.80 761.00 4967643 884.65 761.30 5482091 

December 1148.90 774.00 4217889 1149.35 770.00 5133757 

January 1335.00 856.25 4111088  1330.60 845.85 4809801 

February 905.00 653.40 1704982 910.00 650.65 2242661 

March 707.00 490.00 2637202 728.00 495.00 3180788 

Singapore Exchange Ltd.  
2  SGX Centre 1, Shenton way # 19-00
Singapore 068804 

(Code : XS0282031870) 

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) : 
Aggregating to USD 250 Mn issued in January, 2007 are listed at

th
The Shares of the Company are delisted from Ahmedabad Stock Exchanges w.e.f. 20  December, 2007.
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G. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex.

 
PRICE SENSEX GRAPH
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I. Registrar and Transfer Agents :

M/s. Pinnacle Share Registry Private Limited are appointed as Registrar and Transfer (R & T)  Agents of 
the Company for both Physical and Demat Shares.  The address is given below: 

M/s. Pinnacle Shares Registry Private Ltd. 
Unit : (Adani Enterprises Limited)
Near Asoka Mills Ltd., Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380 025. 
Tel: +91-79-22200582, 22200338. 
Fax : +91-79-22202963. 

Contact Person :
Mr. Girish Patel 
General Manager
E-mail : girish.patel@psrpl.com

Shareholders are requested to correspond with the R & T Agent for transfer / transmission of shares, 
change of address, queries pertaining to their shares, dividend etc. 

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

The amount of dividend that remained unclaimed for a period of seven years are required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government.  To ensure 
maximum disbursement of unclaimed dividend, the Company sends reminders to the relevant investors, 
before transfer of dividend to IEPF. 

During the year under review, the unclaimed dividend amount for the year 1999-2000 were transferred to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government under Section 205C of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

J. Share Transfer System :

All the transfers received are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and are 
approved by the Transfer Committee fortnightly. The share transfer committee met 21 times during the 
year 2007-08.

All share transfers and other communications regarding share certificates, change of address, 
dividend etc. should be addressed to R & T Agents of the Company at the address given above. 

All valid share transfers during the year ended 31.03.2008 have been acted upon. 

Pursuant to Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges, certificates, on half yearly 
basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary-in-Practice for due compliance of share transfer 
formalities by the Company. Pursuant to SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, 
certificates have also been received from a Company Secretary-in Practice for timely dematerialization 
of the shares of the Company and for conducting secretarial audit on a quarterly basis for reconciliation 
of the share capital of the Company.
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st
M. Shareholding Pattern as on 31  March, 2008 :

Category No. of Shares 
held 

(%) of total 

Indian Promoters 184855231 75.00 
Foreign Institutional Investors 34326342 13.93 
Mutual Funds, Banks and Financial Institutions  3958322 1.60 
N.R.I. /O.C.B. / Foreign National    5988680 2.43 
Private Bodies Corporate  3488073 1.42 
Public  13591571 5.51 
Any other (Shares in transit) 278756 0.11 
Total 246486975 100.00 

K. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity :

Your Company's shares are traded compulsorily in dematerialized form.  

The equity shares of your Company are frequently traded on NSE and BSE. Details of Shares 
dematerialized upto March 31, 2008 are as under :

No. of Shares 
(in demat form as 

on 31.03.2008) 

% of Shares No. of 
Shareholders 

(in demat form) 

% of 
Shareholders 

245737044 
 

99.70 18782 98.98 

L. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2008.

Number of 
shares 

Number of shareholders Equity Shares held in each category 

category Holders   % of  Total Total Shares % of Total 

1 to 5000 18584 97.94 4393345 1.78 

5001 to 10000 138 0.73 1028829 0.42 

10001 to 20000 94 0.50 1370689 0.56 

20001 to 30000 26 0.14 655657 0.27 

30001to 40000 22 0.12 773271 0.31 

40001 to 50000 11 0.05 507237 0.21 

50001 to 100000 35 0.18 2478960 1.00 

100001 and 
above 

65 0.34 235278987 95.45 

TOTAL 18975 100.00 246486975 100.00 
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Indian Promoters, 75.00% 

NRIs/OCBs, 2.43% Any other (Shares in transit), 
0.11% Indian Public, 5.51% 

Private Bodies Corporates, 
1.42% 

Foreign Institutional Investors 
, 13.93% 

Mutual Funds, Banks, 
Financial Institutions, 1.60% 

N. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments conversion date and 
likely impact on equity.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)

All 25000 FCCBs of USD 250 million are outstanding for conversion as on March 31, 2008.  

These FCCBs can be converted into 61,111,111 Equity Shares of the Company during any time during 
the conversion period from 27 January 2008 to 27 December 2011 at the option of FCCB holders. 

The shares to be issued upon conversion of FCCBs shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares 
of the Company in all respects. 

O. Plant Locations :

The Company is a “Five Star Export House” engaged in export/import of goods and is having no 
plants.

P. Address for correspondence :
The shareholders may address their communications / suggestions / grievances /queries to :

Mr. Parthiv Parikh
Asst. Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer
Adani Enterprises Ltd.
“Adani House”, Near Mithakhali Six Roads, 
Navarangpura, 
Ahmedabad  380 009
Tel No. (079)  25555 555, 26565 555,
25555 080(DID). 
Fax No. (079)  26565 500, 25555 500. 
Email: parthiv.parikh@adani.in

1. 2. Mr. Girish Patel, General Manager 
M/s. Pinnacle Share Registry Private Ltd. 
Unit : (Adani Enterprises Limited)
Near Asoka Mills Ltd., Naroda Road, 
Ahmedabad - 380 025. 
Tel: +91-79-22200582, 22200338. 
Fax : +91-79-22202963. 
E-mail : girish.patel@psrpl.com
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B. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The non mandatory requirements have been adopted to the extent and in the manner as stated under the 
appropriate headings detailed below : 

a. Chairman's Office 

The Company has an Executive Chairman and hence, the need for implementing this non mandatory 
requirement has not arisen.  

b.  Remuneration Committee 

The Company has a Remuneration Committee to recommend appointment / re-appointment and to 
recommend/review remuneration of the Executive Chairman / Managing / Wholetime Directors.

c. Shareholder rights 

The quarterly / half quarterly results of the Company after being subjected to a Limited Review by the 
Statutory Auditors are published in newspapers and on Company's website www.adani.in. The same 
are also available on the Electronic Data Information Filing and Retrieval System at 
www.sebiedifar.nic.in.                    

d. Postal Ballot 

The provisions relating to Postal Ballot has been complied with in respect of matters where applicable. 

e. Audit Qualifications 

The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of unqualified financial 
statements. Statutory Auditors have issued an unqualified opinion on the statutory financial statements 
of the Company. 

f. Whistle Blower Policy

The employees of the Company are accessible to the senior management for any counseling or 
consultation and the Company has not denied any employee access to the audit committee. 

g. Training of Board Members 

All the Non-Executive Directors have rich experience and expertise in their functional areas. During 
Audit and Board Meetings, the management and working Directors give extensive briefings to the 
Board Members on the business of the Company. 

Independent Directors may have a tenure not exceeding, a period of nine years, on the Board of the 
Company. None of the Independent Directors on our Board have served for a tenure exceeding nine 
years from the date when the new Clause 49 became effective. 
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Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Members,
Adani Enterprises Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
Adani Enterprises Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2008, as stipulated in 
clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock 
Exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management.  Our examination has been limited to a review of the procedures 
and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, 
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For  DHARMESH PARIKH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place : Ahmedabad
thDate  : 28  May, 2008.

(D. A. PARIKH)
Partner
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th28  May, 2008.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year 2007-2008 and that to 
the best of our knowledge and belief: 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed 
to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies.

5. We further certify that :  

(a) there have been no significant changes in internal control during this year. 

(b) there have been no  significant changes in accounting policies during this year and that the 
same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

(c) there have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, involving 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control 
systems. 

Rajesh S. Adani Devang Desai
Managing Director Chief  Financial  Officer

The Board of Directors
Adani Enterprises  Ltd.
Ahmedabad. 

CERTIFICATION BY

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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